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Trustees’ Report 

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor’s 

report of the charitable company for the year to 31 August 2024. The annual report serves 

the purposes of both a Trustees’ report, and a Directors’ report and strategic report under 

company law. 

 

Leodis Academies Trust (the Trust) operates four primary schools (Blackgates Primary 

Academy, East Ardsley Primary Academy, Hill Top Primary Academy and Westerton Primary 

Academy) and one secondary school (Woodkirk Academy) serving the Tingley and Ardsley 

area of South Leeds. It had a roll of 3,356 in the school census in October 2024.  

 

Structure, Governance and Management  

Constitution 

The Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable 

company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association are the primary governing documents 

of the Trust. The Trustees of Leodis Academies Trust are also the Directors of the charitable 

company for the purposes of company law. The charitable company operates as Leodis 

Academies Trust. 

 

Details of the Trustees who served during the year, and up to the date these accounts are 

approved are included in the Reference and Administrative Details on page 3. 

 

In January 2012 the Trust set up a wholly owned subsidiary company called Leodis 

Academy Services Ltd (formerly Woodkirk Academy Services Ltd reg.7918414) with the 

objective of pursuing non-charitable activities. The subsidiary company is currently dormant 

and did not trade during the financial year ended 31 August 2024. 

 

The Trust Board has established a number of committees to discharge its duties. Its 

governance structure comprises of: Members, the Trust Board and its Committees, 

Executive Leadership Team, Local Governing Boards (LGBs) / Local Advisory Board (LAB) 

for sponsored academies and the Senior Leadership Team of each Academy.  The aim of 

this structure is to allow for devolved responsibility in line with the Scheme of Delegation to 

be fully implemented. 

 

Members’ Liability 

Each Member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the 

charitable company in the event of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one 

year after they cease to be a member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, 

for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a member. The Members of 

the company are listed in the Reference and Administrative Details on page 3. 

 

Trustees’ Indemnities 

In accordance with normal commercial practice the Trust reviewed insurance options 

available to protect Trustees and Officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or 

omissions occurring whilst on Academy business. The Trust has chosen to become a 

member of the DfE’s Risk Protection Arrangement.   This provides cover up to £10,000,000 

(2023: £10,000,000) on any one claim. 
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Trustees’ Report (continued) 

Method of Recruitment and Appointment or Election of Trustees 

In line with the Articles of Association, Trustees have been appointed by the Members who 

may appoint by ordinary resolution up to twelve Trustees. There is no maximum number of 

Trustees and Trustees can choose to co-opt Trustees.   

 

The total number of Trustees, including the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) if they so choose 

to act as Trustee under Article 57, who are employees of the Trust shall not exceed one third 

of the total number of Trustees. Members and Trustees have agreed that to ensure 

segregation of duties between Governance and the executive operations of the Trust, the 

CEO Principal is not appointed as a Trustee.  

 

A Trustee’s term of office is four years. Parent and Staff Trustees have not been appointed to 

the Board of Trustees as they are represented on the Local Governing and Advisory Boards 

(LGB/LABs). Parent and staff elections take place at LGB/LABs level to ensure posts are 

appropriately filled. 

 

Recruitment processes are in place to ensure that vacancies are advertised both locally and 

nationally as appropriate and that recruitment is based on the skills audit of the Trust Board. 

Safer Recruitment practices are followed during the recruitment and appointment processes.  

 

Policies and Procedures Adopted for the Induction and Training of Trustees  

The training and induction provided for Trustees depends on their existing experience. All 

Trustees are provided with copies of policies, procedures, minutes, accounts, budgets, plans 

and other documents that they will need to undertake their role as Trustees. Leodis 

Academies Trust complies with the School Standards and Framework Act 1998 and all 

Trustees and Governors are required to confirm their eligibility to act as a Trustee/Governor, 

whether they meet Local Authority Associated Persons (LAAP) definitions and to declare any 

business interest of theirs or their close family, which may conflict with the interests of the 

Trust.   

  

All Trustees and Governors are asked to sign a Code of Conduct.  All new Trustees are 

invited to meet with the CEO Principal to understand more about the day-to-day operation of 

the Trust prior to an induction with the Trust Governance Professional.   All Trustees are 

required to complete a skills audit and safeguarding training, and where necessary, training 

is provided on charity, educational, legal, and financial matters using a blend of face to face 

and online packages. At the start of each academic year Trustees are informed of the 

changes to Keeping Children Safe in Education and any other relevant updates. The Trust is 

a member of the National Governor Association which ensures that Trustees have access to 

independent expert advice and training at all times. 

  

Organisational Structure  

The organisational structure comprises of: Members, the Trust Board and its Committees, 

Executive Leadership Team, LGBs / LABs and the Senior Leadership Team of each 

Academy.  The aim of this structure is to allow for devolved responsibility in line with the 

Scheme of Delegation to be fully implemented.  
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Trustees’ Report (continued) 

Organisational Structure (continued) 

The Roles and Responsibilities for Members, Trustees, LGBs / LABs have been agreed in 

line with the Scheme of Delegation. The Members are responsible for ensuring that the Trust 

fulfils its obligations as described in its Funding Agreement and Articles of Association.  

 

The Board of Trustees are responsible for the strategic direction of the Trust, holding leaders 

to account for educational performance and overseeing financial performance.   

  

The Scheme of Delegation provides clarity for the decisions that are at Member, Trustee and 

LGB / LAB level as well as those delegated to individual Academies within the Trust. The 

Accounting Officer has been approved by the Board of Trustees and is the CEO Principal.  

  

Policies and procedures are developed at Trust-level and these are applied across all 

Academies within the Trust with personalisation to the local Academy context where agreed 

and appropriate.  

  

Trustees meet six times per annum to discuss strategic matters, operational developments, 

and financial and budget performance. Dedicated Finance and Risk (FRC) and Standards 

Committees also meet frequently during the year. FRC also acts as the audit committee.  

 

Each founding Academy has a Local Governing Board (LGB) meeting four times per year. A 

sponsored Academy has a Local Advisory Board (LAB) which meets each half term initially 

(i.e. six times per year) moving to four times a year following a successful inspection. The 

Chair of Trustees meets with the Chairs of LGB/LABs in a Chairs’ Forum meeting to facilitate 

communications between the different layers of governance.  The responsibilities of 

LGB/LABs are set out in the Scheme of Delegation and in the Terms of Reference adopted 

annually by each.  

 

The Trust also holds an annual governance conference to provide all levels of governance 

the opportunity to meet for both strategic direction updates and joint training.   

 

Following an external review of governance, the Trust segregated roles at all levels of 

Governance and a revised the of the Scheme of Delegation to ensure it was fit for purpose 

for a growing Multi Academy Trust. Following the publication of the new Academy Trust 

Governance Guide in March 2024 the scheme of delegation has been revised. 

  

Arrangements for Setting Pay and Remuneration of Key Management Personnel  

Trustees receive no remuneration. Principals, including the CEO Principal, are not Trustees. 

For all key personnel, the Pay Policy is set by the Board of Trustees in line with that used 

nationally to determine group ranges based on school size and benchmarking for executive 

pay. This is then implemented by each Academy.  Performance Management for staff, other 

than Principals and the CEO Principal, is delegated to each individual Academy within the 

Trust with an overarching statement approved by Trustees.  For those staff earning over the 

£60k threshold, their pay progression last year was recommended to the Remuneration 

Committee who oversee the decision for Principals and the CEO Principal. 
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Trustees’ Report (continued) 

Arrangements for Setting Pay and Remuneration of Key Management Personnel  

(continued) 

 

Following the outcome of the 2021 Governance Review, Trustees created a Remuneration 

Committee to review and approve pay recommendations for key management personnel 

made by each LGB/LABs. In the case of the CEO Principal, the Remuneration Committee is 

now responsible for pay decisions and performance management although pay progression 

and performance management are no longer linked following the recommendations of the 

STRB in 2024. Performance Management of the CEO Principal is conducted with an 

external advisor to ensure objectivity. For central Leodis staff, performance management is 

overseen by the CEO Principal and the Board of Trustees via the Remuneration Committee  

  

Trade Union Facility Time 

Relevant Union Officials 

Number of employees who were relevant union officials during the 
relevant period 

3 

Full-time equivalent employee number 2.6 

 

Percentage of Time Spent on Facility Time 
 

Percentage of Time Number of Employees 

0% 2 

1-50% 0 

51-99% 0 

100% 1 

 

Percentage of Pay Bill Spent on Facilities Time 

Provide the total cost of facility time £53,774.18 

Provide the total pay bill  £17,277,126.11 

Provide the percentage of the total pay bill spent facility time, 

calculated as: (total cost of facility time ÷ total pay bill) x 100 
0.31% 

 

Paid Trade Union Duties and Activities   

Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of total 
paid facility time hours calculated as:  
 

(total hours spent on paid trade union activities by relevant union 
officials during the relevant period ÷ total paid facility time hours) x 
100 

0.31% 
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Trustees’ Report (continued) 

Notes to Trade Union Facilities Time  

During the 2023/24 reporting period, there was one member of staff fully seconded to Union 

duties but who remains in our employment. This individual is included in the reporting 

figures. The salary of this member of staff is fully funded and at no cost to the Trust. The time 

spent by other staff on Trade Union activities is 0% combined. 

  

Related Parties and other Connected Charities and Organisations   

During the financial year, there have been no transactions entered into with a related party 

and/or connected charity or organisation. See notes 10 and 26. 

 

Engagement with Employees Including Disabled Persons 

Employee involvement in matters which affect their employment with the Trust are 

encouraged. The Trust has designed and implemented a Staff Pledge consolidating and 

developing existing good practice. The promises to staff are: 

 

• Everyone is valued. 

• Everyone has a career plan. 

• Everyone is supported. 

• Everyone can collaborate. 

• Everyone makes a difference to children. 

 

At the heart of this is supporting staff, listening to them and encouraging collaboration 

throughout the Trust. A staff survey was conducted in the Autumn Term, with results 

evaluated and acted upon where appropriate. This has included: 

 

• working with existing school-based well-being groups across the Trust and providing 

greater availability for staff to speak to Leodis HR around well-being.  

• creation of a Trust wide communications policy, setting clear parameters around what 

is and is not acceptable and ensuring staff do not feel pressurised to answer emails 

outside of their working hours. 

• improving methods of non-financial recognition for staff including positive 

experiences at key times of the year.  

 

The Trust continues to build on the success of the wellbeing package introduced in 2022-23. 

Through this all staff have access to a range of health and support services including 

counselling, GP advice, physiotherapy and wellness clinics.  

 

Communication in the form of regular meetings and briefing sessions between staff and 

senior leaders is designed to be two-way ensuring that future developments can be 

communicated and current issues can be understood.  Specific matters are widely 

communicated using email and senior leaders are happy to meet with staff to discuss any 

issues.  The use of the Trust and Academies SharePoints facilitate one message across the 

Trust ensuring consistency and an ability to signpost to relevant communications at any 

time.  
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Trustees’ Report (continued) 

Engagement with Employees Including Disabled Persons (continued) 

The Trust has a number of employment policies which cover a breadth of matters and follow 

best practice. These are reviewed to ensure that they remain relevant in terms of 

employment law developments and best practice and new policies are created when 

required such as flexible working to ensure the best approach for the Trust and our staff.  

This also allows for changes to be made which may have been recommended as an 

outcome of a particular process. The policies are available to staff and HR colleagues are 

able to discuss any queries in relation to these policies.   

 

The Trust’s positive outlook and excellent reputation enables us to attract and sustain high 

quality staff teams lead by exceptional leaders.  The Trust is committed to equal 

opportunities for all employees, regardless of age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage 

and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex or sexual 

orientation.  This applies in recruitment, career development and training.  Leodis Academies 

Trust is committed to safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children and young people 

and expects all staff to share in this commitment. All employees of the Trust must be aware 

of and comply with Academy and Trust polices relating to child protection, safeguarding, 

health and safety, confidentiality and data protection. 

 

The Trust recognises Trade Unions and works constructively with them.  We have met with 

the unions to discuss policy and other issues and have further meetings when required.   

 

Engagement with Suppliers, Customers and Others in a Business Relationship with 

the Trust  

The Trust’s ethos is to foster good working relationships with all stakeholders, including 

suppliers, customers and others. The Trust follows best practice in relation to purchasing, 

using national and local frameworks and considering local suppliers where possible. The 

Chief Finance Officer (CFO) and Chief Operating Officer (COO) have joined the newly 

created Yorkshire Schools’ Procurement Group to develop this further. 

 

Leodis enjoys an enviable position as a Trust which others wish to work with both within 

Leeds and neighbouring areas such as Wakefield, Kirklees, Calderdale, Bradford and North 

Yorkshire. This is due, in no small part, to its reputation for ethical leadership, honesty and 

integrity.  

 

Leodis prides itself on its collaborative approach and so has a wide range of educational 

links and partnerships. The Trust has a positive relationship with parents and pupils. It plays 

a large part in the local community with links with a number of local sports clubs including a 

partnership and community usage agreement with Woodkirk Valley Football Club.  

 

Collaborations include: 

 

• Leodis has always been viewed as a ‘go-to’, collaborative Trust by the Local Authority 

(LA). We have retained many LA aligned policies and commissioned services where 

they provide high quality.  

• Leodis represent the Academy sector at both primary and secondary level on the 

Schools’ Forum as well as providing several subject leads for the city. 
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Trustees’ Report (continued) 

Engagement with Suppliers, Customers and Others in a Business Relationship with 

the Trust (continued) 

• Providing quality assurance through the Trust and School Improvement programme 
for two other Trusts supporting schools in Bradford. 

• Leodis is a strategic partner in the Leeds Teaching School Hub with a Trustee acting 
as the Chair of Governors for this.  

• Leodis are the lead for the Morley Exceed partnership for primary ITT. This is a 

strategic role for the Exceed (Bradford) Teaching School Hub for the South of Leeds. 

• Leodis also works with a number of other ITT providers as we have a firm 

commitment to developing the future workforce. 

• Leodis Academies are members of the Morley Family of Schools furthering our 

school improvement outreach work and to represent a positive of the Trust sector. 

• The CEO Principal is a Trustee for Castleford Academies Trust bringing insight to 

their board as a practicing executive leader and Ofsted Inspector. 

• The COO and Financial Controller co-founded the West Yorkshire Academy Business 

Leaders’ (WYABL) group which is also attended by the CFO. This is a DfE registered 

group for School Business Professionals to share best practice and develop system 

leadership.  

• The Financial Controller is a current School Resource Management Adviser through 

the Institute of School Business Leadership. 

 

The Trust has further developed its approach to wider system development in the last year 
by:  

• inviting local Trusts and colleagues from maintained schools to join school 
improvement and inclusion related sessions to enhance their practice and allow them 
to work with our Leodis school improvement networks. 

• at the request of the DfE, the CEO has provided support and advice to a new CEO 
developing a hub model Trust in a neighbouring Local Authority. 

• the CFO has presented to the Confederation of School Trusts’ Finance Professional 
Community on the Trust’s approach to Integrated Curriculum Financial Planning 
(ICFP). This has led to follow up work with other Trusts. 

• the COO has completed work for other Trusts reviewing Business Continuity plans 
and advising on how they can be developed.  

• the COO also shares GDPR expertise with smaller Trusts. 
 

During the year the DfE asked Leodis to participate in the Trust and School Improvement 
offer to support a Leeds primary school. This has involved colleagues from across the Trust 
working collaboratively with their counterparts at the school. The DfE’s aim of the support is 
to support their development and introduce them to the benefits of working with a strong 
local Trust. 

 
The Trust has continued to ensure that suppliers have been paid promptly and supported 

and regularly reports its payments practices in line with Company Law. This has been 

reviewed by FRC and the Trust Finance Team to investigate where and why delays happen 

and improve payment speed.  
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Objectives and Activities  

 
Objects and Aims  

In line with the Articles of Association, the aims of the Trust are: 

 

• To advance the education of our pupils by offering a broad and balanced curriculum 

within a safe and inspiring environment. 

• To fulfil our moral purpose by engaging and collaborating with other schools to help 

improve the life-chances of all young people locally. 

 

Our vision is ‘Forging Young Futures’. This vision is driven by every day, every action and 

every decision being based upon meeting the needs of our students whilst at school and in 

preparing them for adult life. This applies to all aspects of the organisation and at every 

level. 

 

Objectives, Strategies and Activities    

Leodis has a clear Strategic Plan in place to implement our vision.   

 

Strategic Aim 1 

All Academies within the Trust provide a good or outstanding quality of education: 

 

• Secure high-quality teaching and learning in a rich and broad curriculum that values 

every aspect of education. 

• Recruit and retain highly skilled and knowledgeable staff to deliver and support this 

curriculum. 

• Provide opportunities for high quality professional development to allow staff to 

continue to excel throughout their career. 

• Improve standards at the end of each Key Stage to exceed national attainment and 

progress measures year-on-year in all areas through high quality teaching and 

learning. 

• Ensure groups at risk of underachieving are supported to make accelerated 

progress. 

• Ensure IT and other systems are fit for purpose to support curriculum, off-site 

learning and administrative requirements. 

 

Strategic Aim 2 

All Academies within the Trust share a self-sustaining, system led, collaborative approach to 

improvement: 

 

• Ensure accurate and robust self-evaluation process are in place that can be used to 

effectively monitor the outcomes and progress of each Academy and the Trust and to 

inform development planning. 

• Embrace collaborative approaches to development planning and shared resources in 

all areas. 

• As we grow, develop further our model with new partners for working within and 

across the Academies to embed our shared vision. 
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Trustees’ Report (continued) 

Objectives, Strategies and Activities (continued)  

 

• Embed our model of bespoke support, network collaboration and use of experts to 

provide effective school improvement both within and beyond the Trust. 

• Continue and further our strategic partnerships and networks within and beyond 

Leodis. 

 

Strategic Aim 3 

Leadership within and across the Trust is at least good and mainly outstanding: 

 

• Ensure a strong Trust Board that has the requisite skills to challenge, and vision to 

drive improvement across the Trust is in place. 

• Ensure the Scheme of Delegation is shared annually and followed by all. 

• Ensure high quality local governance across the Trust to focus on the development of 

individual Academies within the Trust. 

• Attract and retain high quality leaders throughout the Trust 

• Provide opportunities for high quality training and development using nationally 

recognised programmes. 

• Secure strong leadership and direction through the collaborative working of the 

Principals and other leaders across the Trust. 

• Empower leadership teams within each Academy to work strategically and 

collaboratively to share and develop good practice within their Academy, across and 

beyond the Trust. 

 

Strategic Aim 4 

The Trust continues to secure its future sustainability: 

 

• Manage systematic growth through a planned approach. 

• Engage with partners beyond Leodis to strengthen the Trust  

• Deliver high quality services within the Trust and offer them as services outside the 

Trust. 

• Establish a clear structure across the Trust which works to effectively support the 

Academies within it. 

• Deliver a robust and sustainable, long term financial plan. 

• Explore how serving civic responsibility and public duty support sustainability. 

 

A review of the Strategic Aims was undertaken during the financial year 2023-2024.  This 

review was supported by the MAT self-evaluation framework.  Remaining largely unchanged, 

they have been reviewed to allow for Trust growth and expansion whilst retaining a strong 

link to our founding principles. 

 

Each Academy continued to embed their school development priorities alongside the Trust 

wide priorities for writing, disadvantaged pupils and those with SEND.  Three Academies 

were subject to Ofsted inspection in 2023-24 with:  
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Trustees’ Report (continued) 

Objectives, Strategies and Activities (continued)  

 

• Westerton Primary Academy being graded as Good with Outstanding Behaviour and 

Attitudes; 

• East Ardsley Primary Academy subject to an ungraded inspection retaining its Good 

status;  

• Hill Top Primary Academy also being graded as Good with Outstanding Personal 

Development and Behaviour and Attitudes.  

 

In addition, Review Days using both the CEO’s experience as an Ofsted inspector and using 

external consultants similarly qualified have been held in all schools indicating, alongside 

Trust wide averages, that pupils receive and good or outstanding quality of education. 

 

The across Trust IT project is drawing to a conclusion but has been delayed due largely to 

the discovery of RAAC in one teaching block at Woodkirk Academy.  Thankfully the other 

Academies in the Trust are unaffected. 

 

School to school support has been provided both within and beyond the Trust. As previously 

mentioned, the Trust has been asked to provide support to another local primary school 

under the DfE’s Trust and School Improvement Offer.  The establishment of subject networks 

has been key to this and the programme of peer working continues.  In addition, networks for 

other key areas have been impactful in driving school improvement.  These include Early 

Years, SEND, Attendance and Assessment.  Ever mindful of the importance of safeguarding 

the DSL network meets regularly and across Trust safeguarding training and briefings have 

been introduced to ensure that all know their role in this. Across Trust writing moderation and 

training has resulted in writing outcomes being supported.   

 

Our annual joint INSET day focussed on our priorities around ensuring outcomes in the 

broadest sense for Disadvantaged pupils and those with SEND improve.  This work was 

continued throughout the year through subject leaders and SENDCos.  Leadership 

continued to strength with the use of a wide range of NPQ qualifications to support this. 

 

This year also saw the official launch of the Leodis Pledge, our commitment to civic 

responsibility and public duty by ensuring the fundamentals that no child is hungry, all are 

ready to learn and that they have the support they need, especially with mental health. 

Again, our subject networks have looked the core experiences a child who attends a Leodis 

School will have through the curriculum and wider opportunities and these continue to be 

developed.  The Pledge also seeks to address disadvantage and support families with the 

rising cost of living.   

   

Governance continues to be at both Trust Board and local level.  The annual Governance 

Conference has brought all together to explore newly defined link roles as well as 

undertaking essential training on safeguarding. 
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Trustees’ Report (continued) 

Objectives, Strategies and Activities (continued)  

Robust financial planning and a dynamic response to the challenges posed by a second 

year of financial instability caused by unfunded pay awards, fuel costs and rising costs 

caused considerable additional work for both the central team and Principals but resulted in 

being able to weather the storm. The Trust has further developed its use of ICFP to inform 

strategic planning. 

 

Public Benefit 

In setting our objectives and planning our activities the Trustees have given careful 

consideration to the Charity Commission guidance on public benefit.  

 

The principles underlying our Academies are: 

 

• We always put children first. 

• We are fully inclusive and welcome children from vulnerable groups. 

• We follow responsible admission criteria based on each Academy's circumstances. 

• We believe local children should attend local schools and we are not selective. 

• We believe that every child, irrespective of their starting point, should succeed and 

achieve. 

• We provide high quality professional development opportunities for all our staff. 

• We follow the School Teachers Pay and Conditions and National Joint Council 

conditions of service. 

• We work positively with Trade Unions. 

 

As a hub model Trust, with collaboration at the heart of our work, our mission is to make a 

significant impact on the education and life chances of all children in our local area.  To 

achieve this we share good practice, resources, and a philosophy that secures high quality 

teaching and learning across our schools. We focus on the breadth of curriculum; and value 

and provide enrichment opportunities for our young people to develop their talents and to 

find new skills and interests.   We aim to provide equality of opportunity through equality of 

resource and work as a Trust to achieve this. 

 

We have developed our Leodis Pledge to allow us to extend this reach to meet the growing 

needs of families, particularly those who are disadvantaged.  We pledge to meet certain 

fundamental living standards by supporting families through the Leodis Support Service to 

access the services they need to be safe, warm and fed.  We pledge also to ensure that all 

children across the Trust have a series of core experiences that complement their 

experience in school.  These experiences will be in sport and health, the performing arts, the 

wider world, festivals and life events as well as understanding their place and in their 

community so they feel a sense of belonging. 

 

In order to do this, we need to ensure that we attract and retain high quality staff and so we 

have developed our staff pledge.  By joining Leodis Academies Trusts our staff have access 

to free wellbeing support that includes GP, physio and counselling as well as centralised HR 

services.  As many of our staff live within the Trust area this impacts positively on the wider 

community, 
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Trustees’ Report (continued) 

Strategic Report: Achievements and Performance 
 

Key Performance Indicators 

 

Blackgates Primary Academy 

Blackgates continues to progress. The school is in the final year of transitioning to being a 

one form entry primary due to falling numbers in the local area. They are a truly inclusive 

school and provide for a wide range of needs ensuring that all progress to the next steps of 

their education successfully. They continue to be highly regarded as such and are the host 

school for the Exceed (Bradford) Teaching School Hub. 

 

Blackgates has the highest FSM and SEND needs within the Trust however the results 

achieved this summer were lower than would be desirable. The cohort were badly affected 

by the Covid pandemic and mobility is significantly higher than the national average resulting 

in with many joining the school later in their education than they would otherwise would have 

done.  This was particularly true of Year 6 with 31% joining post pandemic in Key Stage 2, 

24% in Year 5 and 6. Others had significant SEND (28%) or had other vulnerabilities 

including 40% pupil premium. The results have been carefully analysed and with contextual 

information, there are clear areas identified for future development.   

 

Performance of Reception children is slightly below the national picture (GLD) however it is 

important to recognise the significant increase in children with high SEND needs in the 

cohort.  The picture in Early Years rapidly improves resulting in Phonics screening being 

significantly above national figures and the highest in the Trust.  At Key Stage 2, headline 

results were below national. 

 

Blackgates 
EYFS  Key Stage 2 

GLD Phonics  Reading Writing Maths Combined 

All (%) 59 93  61 67 57 41 

 

East Ardsley Primary Academy 

East Ardsley remains a popular school and was full in most year groups in 2023-24 and over 

PAN in a number.  East Ardsley is a highly inclusive school and works hard to ensure that 

the children with high level SEND are well provided for.  As a modern and purpose-built 

school, it is able to accommodate children with high level needs.  It has expanded its SEND 

provision over the past year to support a shortfall in places within the Local Authority.  SEND 

has been a Trust wide priority and additional training and development has been given by 

the SENDCos through a Trust wide training day.  They also continue to receive children who 

are fostered or adopted as there is a strong tradition of this in local families. 

 

The Academy has taken steps to strengthen curriculum whilst continuing to work on 

providing greater consistency in the classroom.  The school was inspected in May 2024 and 

continues to be a good school. 

 

Results this summer were an improvement on the previous year and are mainly in line with 

or above national data sets. Reception children have performed higher than the national 

picture (GLD) despite an increase in the level of SEND in the cohort.  Phonics screening  
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Trustees’ Report (continued) 

Strategic Report: Achievements and Performance (continued) 

East Ardsley Primary Academy (continued) 

resulted in above national figures.  At Key Stage 2, results improved significantly on 2023 

with the impact of the new Writing and Spelling schemes particularly apparent.   

 

East Ardsley 
EYFS  Key Stage 2 

GLD Phonics  Reading Writing Maths Combined 

All (%) 76 88  83 77 77 66 

 

Hill Top Primary Academy 

Hill Top is a school which has continued to be favoured as first choice for parents from 

reception. This was validated in their recent inspection which states “Pupils love to attend 

this caring and inclusive school”.  The Principal has worked with staff to embed the revised 

the curriculum and develop subject leadership.  

 

As a PFI school, there have been challenges posed by this during the year and investment 

has been made by the Trust to address issues of compliance as well as preparation for hand 

back of the school. 

 

The Academy has also seen a rise in special educational needs, particularly around Speech 

and Language in younger years and the Academy has invested in providing appropriate 

support for this. 

 

Hill Top has maintained a strong performance in the summer outcomes.  Reception children 

have performed in line with the national picture (GLD) reflecting the rise in SEND.  Phonics 

screening resulted in above national figures.  At Key Stage 2, results were very strong and 

well above national.      

 

Hill Top 
EYFS  Key Stage 2 

GLD Phonics  Reading Writing Maths Combined 

All (%) 69 90  83 80 83 73 

 

Westerton Primary Academy 

Westerton is a larger than average, three form entry primary school which enjoys continued 

popularity resulting in most year groups being full or over PAN. 

 

The school has experienced a significant period of change in leadership which has now 

settled with staffing remaining stable.  The Academy has continued to enjoy success with 

outcomes remaining strong overall as seen in their recent inspection judgement of Good with 

Outstanding Behaviour and Attitudes. 

 

Reception children have performed significantly higher than the national picture (GLD).  

Phonics screening resulted in above national figures also.  At Key Stage 2, results were 

mixed with writing, subject to moderation, just below the national average resulting in the 

combined figure also being slightly below national.        
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Trustees’ Report (continued) 

Strategic Report: Achievements and Performance (continued) 

Westerton Primary Academy (continued) 

Westerton 
EYFS  Key Stage 2 

GLD Phonics  Reading Writing Maths Combined 

All (%) 85 89  76 69 77 57 

 

Woodkirk Academy  

Woodkirk continues to be a larger than average secondary Academy with 11 forms of entry 

in Main School and a Sixth Form of around 300 students.  It is significantly oversubscribed 

annually and has taken additional students (up to 15 over the 300 PAN annually) at the 

request of the Local Authority. Although the school has experienced significant disruption 

due to the discovery of RAAC in one of the large teaching blocks including the Sixth Form 

area, the school community has been an exemplar of resilience and, despite daily 

challenges, have rallied together to ensure that there was not a single day of learning lost 

and it maintained its high standards of performance.   

 

The Academy received positive Key Stage 4 results again this summer.  Progress 8 was 

+0.15 overall. 

 

Key Stage 4 
2024 

Basics 4+ (%) Basics 5+ (%) Attainment 8 
EBacc Av Pts 

Score 

All 76 57 50 4.7 

Disadvantaged 50 29 34.4 3.2 

Other 85 65.4 54 5.2 

 

Performance at Key Stage 5 saw improvement within A Levels from 2023.  There is no 

national progress figure. 

 

Key Stage 5 
2024 

Average Point 
Score 

A*-A (%) 
D*-D (%) 

A*-B (%) 
D*-M (%) 

A*-E (%) 
D*-P (%) 

A-Level 36 26 56 99 

Applied General 33 31 63 98 

 

Financial Performance 

Financial Key Performance Indicators are discussed further on pages 21-24. 

 

Other Accomplishments Across the Trust 

The Trust has continued to develop Leodis Support Services, which provides additional 

guidance and support for all students and families across the Trust. The team work closely 

with pastoral staff to provide family support, emotional health and well-being, counselling, 

and access to external commissioned services and resources. Support is offered to all  
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Trustees’ Report (continued) 

Other Accomplishments Across the Trust (continued) 

issues which affect family functioning and wellbeing and act as a barrier to education. This 

model is expandable as the Trust grows. 

 

The Trust receives SCA funding, and significant improvements continue to be made to the 

estate. Due to the ongoing management of RAAC at Woodkirk Academy, the capital plans 

had to be modified ensuring that necessary health and safety works continue to be 

addressed across the Trust.  The Trust, however, has received the positive news that 

Woodkirk is phase one of the School Rebuilding Programme (SRP). The extent of a potential 

rebuild is not yet known although it will include the RAAC affected block as a minimum. 

Despite this the Trust has continued its energy efficiency drive in the last year, successfully 

further reducing consumption of both gas and electricity for sites controlled (non PFI) by 

Leodis. This will improve further in the new academic year with solar panels having been 

installed at Westerton and Blackgates over the summer. 

 

Attendance  

Average attendance figures for the Trust: 

 

Academy 2023-24 % 

Blackgates Primary Academy 93.2 

East Ardsley Primary Academy 94.5 

Hill Top Primary Academy 95.4 

Westerton Primary Academy 95.3 

Woodkirk Academy 91.3 
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Trustees’ Report (continued) 

Other Accomplishments Across the Trust (continued) 

Ofsted Ratings 

Ofsted ratings across the Trust are:  

 

Academy Rating 
Report 
Date 

Blackgates Primary 
Academy 

Overall judgement: Requires Improvement 

April 2023 

Quality of education: Good 

Behaviour and attitudes: Requires Improvement 

Personal development: Good 

Leadership and management:  Good 

Early years provision: Good 
 

 
East Ardsley 
Primary Academy 

 

Continues to be a good school May 2024 

 

Hill Top Primary 
Academy 

Overall judgement: Good  

July 2024 

Quality of education: Good 

Behaviour and attitudes: Outstanding 

Personal development: Outstanding 

Leadership and management:  Good 

Early years provision: Good 
 

Westerton Primary 
Academy 

Overall judgement: Good 

October 
2023 

Quality of education: Good 

Behaviour and attitudes: Good 

Personal development: Outstanding 

Leadership and management:  Good 

Early years provision: Good 
 

Woodkirk Academy Continues to be a good school May 2023 

 

Going Concern 

The Trustees acknowledge that these financial statements have been prepared with a 

backdrop of a number of economic uncertainties. It has been a very challenging year 

financially with challenges from the previous year’s post budget setting announcement of 

further unfunded teacher and support staff pay rises, rising inflationary costs and rising 

energy costs. This was compounded by significant political uncertainty in the first six months 

of the year until the election was announced. This then caused further difficulties as all 

government announcements were suspended during the election period and delayed with 

the change of government. Trustees recognise that these external factors will continue to 

bring uncertainty and risk to the Trust during the next 12 months, some of which cannot be 

planned for.  Trustees foresee that the strong cash balances, asset base and reserves 

position held mean that the Trust is sustainable in the next period.   

 

The ESFA have issued a Good Practice Guide 'Operating an Academy Trust as a Going 

Concern' which details a number of financial challenge issues for Academy Trustees to  
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Trustees’ Report (continued) 

Going Concern (continued) 

consider. A paper outlining the Trust approach to these challenges was considered at the 

Trust Board meeting on 12 September 2024 with recommendations to the Trust Board.  

 

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that 

the Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable 

future. For this reason, it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the 

financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can 

be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies.  

 

Promoting the Success of the Company  

The Board of Trustees is keen to further promote the success of Leodis Academies Trust, 

and as such, has via the CEO worked closely with the DfE to explore Trust expansion.  

Whilst this has not yet materialised, the Trust is viewed favourably and is open to 

opportunities as they arise. The strategic plan has been reviewed and updated to reflect 

changes and direction of travel for Leodis.  Continued strategic partnership of the Leeds 

Teaching School Hub has provided another opportunity to promote the success of Leodis 

alongside other DFE/Regional Director commissioned support work undertaken by the Trust.  

  

The Central Team has ensured implementation of the strategic plan with regard to the 

following:  

  

• the likely consequences of any decision in the long term.  

• the interests of the company’s employees.  

• the need to foster the company’s business relationships with suppliers, customers 

and others.  

• the impact of the company’s operations on the community and the environment. 

• the desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of 

business conduct. 

• the need to act fairly between each Academy within the Trust.  

 

The Trust has commissioned a marketing company to further develop and promote the Trust 

brand in addition to sharing our successes via social media and our websites. 

  

Financial Review    

The majority of the Trust’s income is received from the Department for Education via the 

Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) in the form of recurrent grants, the use of 

which is restricted to particular purposes. The grants received from the ESFA during the year 

ended 31 August 2024 and the associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the 

statement of financial activities. 

 

The Trust also received grants for capital projects through the School Condition Allocation 

(SCA) programme and Devolved Formula Capital grants. In accordance with the Academies 

Accounts Direction 2023/24 such grants are shown in the Statement of Financial Activities as 

restricted income in the fixed asset fund. The restricted fixed assets fund is reduced by 

annual depreciation charges over the expected useful life of the assets concerned. Grants  
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Trustees’ Report (continued) 

Financial Review (continued) 

which the ESFA classify as capital for RAAC related expenditure are also included within the 

fixed asset fund. 

 

During the year ended 31 August 2024, the in-year movement on unrestricted and restricted 

general funds excluding pensions was a surplus of £50,000 (£600k surplus in 2023). 

 

At 31 August 2024, the net book value of fixed assets was £16,574,000 and movements in 

fixed assets are shown in note 12 to the financial statements. It should be noted that fixed 

assets include a provision for £858,000 RAAC impairment at Woodkirk recognised in 

2022/23. The land and buildings at Blackgates Primary, Westerton Primary and Woodkirk 

Academies are included in the value of fixed assets, along with furniture, equipment, ICT 

and motor vehicles across all five Academies. The Trust School Condition Allocation capital 

grant of £602,000 is recognised in the SOFA within Restricted Fixed Asset Funds. There are 

a number of ongoing capital projects not complete at year end and therefore the 

accumulated balance of £1,008,000 is included as unspent funds within the restricted fund 

balance along with balances on Devolved Formula Capital grants. 

 

Current assets have increased in the year from £5,471,000 to £5,517,000 and creditors have 

decreased to £1,874,000 (2023: £2,166,000), resulting in an increase in net current assets 

from £3,305,000 to £3,643,000. Creditors falling due after more than one year relate to Salix 

loans repayable over 7 and 8 years and have reduced from £59,000 to £19,000. 

 

Any deficit in the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) would be recognised on the 

balance sheet as a liability in accordance with the provisions of FRS102. Although it was 

reported as a £1,685k asset in the Trust’s independent actuarial report, it is not felt that this 

is realisable therefore it currently stands at a £0 balance on the balance sheet. 

 

The Trust held fund balances at 31 August 2024 of £20,197,000 comprising £17,672,000 of 

fixed assets funds, a deficit of £84,000 of restricted general funds, £2,609,000 of unrestricted 

general funds and a pension reserve asset of £0. 

  

Reserves Policy 

The Trustees review the level of reserves on an annual basis to ensure that they are 

maintained at the required level.  

 

The Reserves and Investment Policy was split in April 2023 into a separate Reserves Policy 

and Investment Policy. The two policies were approved on 1st April 2023. This was done to 

allow the Trust to maximise the return on held reserves to benefit the children of the Trust 

through Leodis Pledge. 

 

The purpose of the policies are to establish a framework within which decisions will be made 

regarding the level of reserves held by Leodis Academies Trust and the purposes for which 

they will be used and maintained.  
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Trustees’ Report (continued) 

Reserves Policy (continued) 

 

The policies also provide the framework for future strategic planning and decision-making. 

The development of an effective reserves and investment policies inform the management of 

financial risk and restrict the impact of any risk upon the continuing operations of the Trust. It 

serves to ensure the stability of the Trust’s organisational operations and to protect it so it 

has the ability to make sufficient provision for future cash flow requirements and adjust 

quickly to any financial circumstances.  

 

The DfE expects academy trusts to use their allocated funding each year for the full benefit 

of the current pupils.  It is, therefore, important that if the Trust has a substantial surplus 

there is a clear plan how it will be used to benefit the pupils and to fulfil the Trust’s charitable 

objectives. 

 

The Trust holds reserves to inform the budget and risk management process by identifying 

uncertainty in future income streams, for funding new projects (e.g. premises and 

infrastructure) and achieving a balanced budget.   

 

The ESFA do not impose any restriction on the level of reserves held but can challenge the 

level if deemed to be excessive.   

 

The Trustees do not consider the pension liability to be part of the short and medium term 

reserves requirements providing the Trust can meet the monthly contributions. A surplus or 

deficit position of the pension scheme would generally result in a cash flow effect for the 

Academy Trust in the form of an increase or decrease in employers’ pension contributions 

over a period of years. 

 

The Trust considers that the appropriate level of reserves for each Academy is equivalent to 

5% of annual GAG funding for the relevant financial year, which equates to £901,695.  

 

Reserves falling below this will require LGBs to provide Trustees with a rationale for 

approval, with a plan of how reserves will be maintained at the agreed levels over the next 

three years.  This should be in writing. For sponsored schools with a LAB this will be 

completed at Trust Board level. This has not been necessary in this financial year.  

 

It is expected that all Academies within the Trust will set a balanced budget for each financial 

year. Where reserves have accumulated: 

 

• reserves should have a specific purpose related to future spending or covering 

current and future risks;  

• the size of reserves should balance the benefit of current spending with the risks the 

reserves cover; 

• the use of any reserves should be transparent and maintain the link with the 

purposes for which the income was given; and 

• sufficient resources should be available so that unexpected events can be 

accommodated without causing current year problems, leading to deficit or cash-flow 

issues. 
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Trustees’ Report (continued) 

Reserves Policy (continued) 

 

Reserves held in excess of the target percentage will be reviewed by the Trust on an annual 

basis. 

 

The balance on general funds (excluding pension reserves) plus the balance on unrestricted 

funds at 31st August 2024 is £2,525,000. The balance on the restricted general fund is a 

deficit of £84,000. Trustees have reviewed this balance and agree that it is adequate to meet 

future needs. It is higher than the 5% level detailed above but was built up to protect the 

Trust from financial uncertainties and to protect against falling pupil numbers and rising PFI 

costs, along with the cost implications and the unfunded future pay rises and rising energy 

costs and inflation. It also includes £505,000 of designated funds. 

 

Designated Reserves 

Woodkirk Academy has agreed to designate £20,000 p.a. on an ongoing basis towards 

maintenance of the 3G pitch. There is £200k designated at year end for this purpose. 

£48,000 has been allocated towards IT strategy investment and this amount is carried 

forward within year end designated funds.  

 

In addition this year, Trustees have elected to designate:  

 

• £20,000 was transferred in the 2023/24 financial year for the Woodkirk 3G pitch. 

• a further £100,000 at Woodkirk Academy to fund future IT investment from 

unrestricted funds.  

• £21,000 at Westerton Primary Academy linked to an unspent donation received in 

23/24; and  

• £136,000 centrally which relates to the amount of interest which has been generated 

to fund the Leodis Pledge which is currently unspent. 

  

Investment Policy 

The Trustees are keen to optimise a return on working capital whilst allowing easy access of 

the funds. In balancing risk against return the Trust’s policy is geared towards avoiding risk 

rather than to maximise return.  

 

The Trust places funds that are not needed immediately into a variety of FCA regulated 

savings accounts through the Insignis platform. These are short-term deposit accounts of 

varying durations of no more than 12 months. The spread of funds has been carefully 

planned to maximise returns while ensuring liquidity. A notable proportion of funds are in a 

higher yield interest access account with other fixed term accounts (with higher interest 

yields) maturing at various intervals throughout the year. FRC oversee the investment 

strategy. Accounts are also chosen carefully based on their credit rating and ESG 

credentials. Funds are also spread across a variety of institutions to maximise protections. 

 

Cash balances at 31 August 2024 were £4,143,000 (2023: £5,011,000). 
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Trustees’ Report (continued) 

Principal Risks and Uncertainties  

The Trustees are ultimately responsible for the management of risk.  

  

The Finance and Risk Committee was established in September 2018 and also fulfils the 

role of the Audit Committee for the Trust. It is responsible for ensuring that high level risks  

are being adequately identified and managed. This is comprised of Trustees, and the Trust 

CEO Principal, CFO and COO also attend meetings. The Committee meet six times per 

year, and every meeting includes a review of items on the risk register.    

 

A Risk Register is kept for each Academy alongside the overarching Trust register. The Trust 

Risk Register identifies the principal risks and uncertainties to which the Trust is exposed.  

Each risk is scored for severity prior to and after control measures and contingency plans 

have been put in place.  

 

Risk registers are monitored at both Academy and Trust level, and it is clear which risks are 

managed locally and which are held at central Trust level. Risk Registers are used to inform 

the Trust and School Development Plans, Business Continuity Plans, budget forecasting and 

the Reserves Policy.  

   

Trustees are clear on the principal risks and uncertainties that face the Trust and their 

appetite for risk in relation to these risks.   Risk Appetite is reviewed on an annual basis.  

 

The Trustees are continuing to develop and embed risk management throughout the Trust 

and understand the need of risk management to evolve as the Trust grows. The Trust 

ensures that there is consideration of those risks impacting on Trustees responsibilities to 

ensure the trust's estate is safe, well maintained and complies with relevant regulations. 

 

The principal risks and uncertainties that face the Trust are considered to be:  

 

• Operational: the disruption caused by RAAC at Woodkirk had a wider implication on 

the resources for the Trust. Although working closely with the DfE RAAC team, the 

delivery of the temporary building solution for the Sixth Form and DT block was 

managed by the Trust and School Estates team.  This was not the case with most 

RAAC schemes but was due to the expertise within the Trust and the need to 

expedite a speedy temporary solution which allowed education to continue on site.  

Unfortunately, this did impact on capacity and as a result other Trust estates projects 

were delayed although most planned works were completed over the summer. 

Further works has been taking place at the Academy H&S meetings to inform the 

next round of Estates development. A great deal of work has taken place over the 

last year to improve the Trust's IT resilience, both in terms of IT cyber security 

measures and over £250K investment in IT equipment replacement.  Further 

development works continues this year.   

 

• Financial: The impact of the post budget announcement of unfunded teacher and 

support staff pay rises at the start of the 23/24 year. The impact of rising energy 
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costs. The impact of a falling numbers on roll and falling birth rate on the viability of 

the current primary intake across the Trust. 

 

Trustees’ Report (continued) 

Principal Risks and Uncertainties (continued) 

 

• Staffing: instability, loss of key staff, succession management for key posts; loss of 

staff morale arising from the economic situation and impact of building closure at 

Woodkirk. 

 

• Reputational: perception of the Trust and/or any of the schools within it. 

 

• Educational / performance: The impact on learning and future outcomes for 

students, with a particularly focus on attendance and the impact of building closure 

on students at Woodkirk Academy. 

 

• Attendance: Attendance at school is a national issue. New DfE guidance was 

launched in the summer which has meant new ways of working for our attendance 

teams and the local authority. We have rewritten our attendance policy to address 

this as well as taking account of national changes that came into force 19th August 

2024 and kept parents updated on this new guidance. Each school has implemented 

its own attendance strategy working with its identified families and we have identified 

additional roles require across the Trust to support with those hard to reach families. 

 

RAAC 

On the 31 August 2023 it was announced that school buildings with RAAC must be taken out 

of use with immediate effect. Through the Trust’s proactive estate management approach, it 

was already known that Red Block in Woodkirk contained RAAC. Although it was deemed 

safe in previous surveys to continue using the block, DfE advice was followed and the block 

was closed.  

 

The Trust has been working with all appointed DfE representatives to manage the business 

continuity implications as well as the longer-term future for the block. In terms of business 

continuity, the DfE has committed to fund most costs associated with RAAC. There is 

therefore no need for any future liabilities to be recognised in these accounts as these do not 

exist from the Trust’s perspective. 

 

In terms of asset impairment, it is now known that the whole block will likely be demolished 

and rebuilt as the Academy is included in the Phase One of the SRP. Feasibility is being 

undertaken to assess how much of the site will be rebuilt however it is known that as a 

minimum, the RAAC affected block will be included. A temporary building has been installed 

on site to compensate for the space lost and ensure continuity of provision.  

 

The conditions to create the uncertainty existed at the balance sheet date at the end of the 

last financial year however at that time, there was not a clear indication of whether the asset 

is fully impaired. A provision of £857,951 was entered into the accounts in 2022/23 for the full 
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net book value as there was material uncertainty about the future of the block. This provision 

has not been reversed and will remain until the block is demolished. 

 

 

 

Trustees’ Report (continued) 

Fundraising  

Low level fundraising activities have taken place during the year on a voluntary basis and the 

Trust does not currently work with professional fundraisers. Amounts raised in the year have 

been mainly fundraising for external charities alongside small amounts for school resources. 

These have been through non uniform days and charity 'fun days'. All fundraising undertaken 

during the year was monitored by Trustees. 

 

Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting  
 

UK Greenhouse gas emissions and energy use data for the period 1 
September 2023 to 31 August 2024 

 

 
Current 

 Reporting Year 
2023/24 

Previous 
Reporting Year 

2022/23 

Energy consumption used to calculate 
emissions (kWh) 

3,093,490 3,207,280 

Energy consumption 
break down (kWh) 

Gas 2,177,451 2,311,883 

Electricity 899,522 882,284 

Transport fuel 16,517 13,113  

Scope 1: emissions in 
metric tonnes (CO2e) 

Gas consumption 397.45 422.06 

Owned transport 
– mini-buses 

5.20 3.05 

Total Scope 1   402.65 425.11  

Scope 2: emissions in 
metric tonnes (CO2e)   

Purchased 
electricity    

186.25 182.7 

Scope 3: emissions in 
metric tonnes (CO2e) 

Business travel in 
employee owned 
vehicles    

0.55 0.73 

Total gross emissions in metric tonnes 
(CO2e) 

589.44 680.55 

Intensity ratio: tonnes CO2e per pupil   
0.17 

 
0.17 

 

Quantification and Reporting Methodology  
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We have followed the 2019 HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines. We have 

also used the GHG Reporting Protocol – Corporate Standard and have used the 2024 UK 

Government’s Conversion Factors for Company Reporting.     

 

 

 

Trustees’ Report (continued) 

Intensity Measurement    

The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO2e per 

pupil, the recommended ratio for the sector.    

 

Measures Taken to Improve Energy Efficiency  

The Trust continues to review energy efficient solutions to all building projects and 

refurbishments. These types of solutions have already been considered in previous projects 

such as the installation of energy efficient lighting in our non-PFI Academies and replacing 

the roof at the Academy with the highest CO2e ratio per pupil.  

 

The Trust has developed an energy management plan which was launched to staff in 

Autumn 2022. This focused on the following areas: 

 

• Reduce our energy demand and consumption. 

• Reduce our energy cost. 

• Reduce our carbon emissions. 

 

Area Actions 

Understanding 
energy usage 

Monitoring and reviewing consumption and contracts. 

Review of Controls 
Making sure that the most efficient controls in place so that 
equipment can be switched on and off and respond quickly to 
different weather conditions. 

Insulation Where possible, ensure the most efficient insulation is in place. 

Lighting 

Maximise the use of natural daylight to reduce the need for 
lighting by:  

• Drawing blinds up. 

• Removing window obstructions. 

• Ensuring windows are clean. 

• Reviewing use of LED lighting. 

Heating and Cooling 

There are minimum temperatures for each area of school with 
reference to government guidance on energy efficiency: guidance 
for the school and further education college estate: 

• 18°C for parts of the building where there is a normal level of 
activity, such as classrooms and offices. 

• 21°C for areas where the occupants are inactive or sick. 
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• 15°C for other teaching accommodation, washrooms, 
sleeping accommodation and circulation areas. 

• Air conditioning to be on cool setting only when room 
temperature has reached 24°C. 

Use of IT 

There is now an automatic switch off at 8pm. Work is continuing 
on the use of cloud technology in order to reduce pressure of on-
site servers. 

Trustees’ Report (continued) 

Measures Taken to Improve Energy Efficiency (continued) 

The Trust notes that the highest consumption of energy is through gas. This is mainly used 

for heating. The Trust is considering its energy strategy in relation to heating as part of its 

estate's development planning and through the SRP at Woodkirk.  

 

The Trust is working with an external adviser to develop its long-term energy strategy. The 

Trust has commissioned Heat Decarbonisation surveys and has invested in Solar Panels 

where possible to make further energy efficiencies. The Trust is committed to investing in 

energy efficiency projects with its SCA where possible. 

 

  

Plans for Future Periods  

The Trust has a Strategic Plan in place, outlined earlier in this document.  Trustees revisit 

this annually to re-examine the vision for Leodis and priorities for the forthcoming year.   The 

strategic aims will remain the same for 2024-25 as the Trust continues to explore growth 

options in line with Strategic Aim 4.  Across Trust priorities (which will also involve across 

Trust Review) are Attendance, Writing, Disadvantaged pupils and those with SEND based 

on continued post pandemic recovery and the changing needs of our cohorts. 

 

We anticipate that Blackgates Primary Academy will be inspected by 31st May 2025.  Much 

work will be done to support the Academy preparing for this and supporting them to respond 

to an ever-changing Ofsted agenda. 

 

We will work with our staff across the Trust to build our workforce, recruiting the best, 

growing our own through effective training and developed whilst balancing workload and 

wellbeing for all. 

 

Our review and self-evaluation systems as well as across Trust networks and training will 

continue to support both the strategic plan and implementation of Trust priorities, including 

our commitment to wider public and civic duty with the extension of the Leodis Pledge 

beyond the curriculum offer and the school day. 

 

We will continue to develop our collaborative partnerships and support for others Leodis 

across all aspects of our work as we are committed to ensuring that our children and those 

beyond Leodis receive the very best education possible. 
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Governance Statement 

Scope of Responsibility  

As Trustees we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Leodis 

Academies Trust has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise.  

However, such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to 

achieve business objectives and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance 

against material misstatement or loss.  

 

As trustees, we have reviewed and taken account of the guidance in DfE’s Governance 

Handbook and Competency Framework for Governance. 

 

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to Joanne Barton as the 

CEO Principal and Accounting Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the 

requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in accordance with the 

requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between Leodis 

Academies Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. She is also responsible for 

reporting to the Board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal 

control.  

 

Governance   

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees’ 

Report and in the Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities.   

 

The Board of Trustees has formally met six times during the year.  Effective oversight of 

funds was maintained across the year with management accounts circulated on a monthly 

basis to enable Trustees to maintain effective oversight of funds. The Finance and Risk 

subcommittee met five times during the year between Trust Board meetings.  

 

Meetings were held in a variety of formats over the year, mainly face to face, but with the 

opportunity for Governors to attend remotely.   

 

Attendance during the year at meetings of the Board of Trustees was as follows:  

 

Trustees 
Meetings 
Attended 

Total Meetings 
Available 

Notes 

A Brodie-Browne 4 6  

M Cook 5 6  

R Ganz  6 6  

D Lester 4 6  

S Makin  6 6  

N O’Donovan 6 6 Chair 

C Stribley 5 6  

I West  6 6  
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Governance Statement (continued) 

Governance (continued) 

The Board of Trustees annually review the Finance Regulations, the Scheme of Delegation 

and Committee membership and Terms of Reference.    

 

The independent Governance Review provided a number of key recommendations to 

improve the way which all levels of Governance understand and discharge their duties. This 

includes a full review of the Scheme of Delegation. This was implemented in March 2022. 

Following the publication of the new Academy Trust Governance Guide in March 2024 the 

scheme of delegation has been revised. 

 

The Trustees held their annual Governance Conference in November 2023, which provided 

an opportunity for all levels of Governance to come together face-to-face to discuss Trust 

developments and receive up-to-date training.  

 

The Finance and Risk Committee is a sub-committee of the main Board of Trustees. Its 

purpose is to provide assurance to the Board over the suitability of, and compliance with, its 

financial systems and operational controls, and to ensure that risks are being adequately 

identified and managed.  

 

Attendance during the year at meetings of the Finance and Risk Committee was as follows:  

 

Trustees 
Meetings 
Attended 

Total Meetings 
Available 

Notes 

R Ganz  4 5 Co-Chair 

D Lester 5 5 Co-Chair 

I West  5 5  

  

The Standards Committee has continued to meet during the year. This committee meets 

three times a year. The purpose of the meeting is to analyse performance data and monitor 

school and Trust improvement.  

 

Trustees 
Meetings 
Attended 

Total Meetings 
Available 

Notes 

A Brodie-Browne 2 4  

M Cook 3 4 Chair 

S Makin  3 4  

N O’Donovan 3 4  

C Stribley 2 4  

 

Review of Value for Money   

As Accounting Officer, the CEO Principal has responsibility for ensuring that the Trust 

delivers good value in the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that  



Leodis Academies Trust 

33 

 

Governance Statement (continued) 

Review of Value for Money (continued) 

value for money refers to educational and wider societal outcomes, as well as estates safety 

and management, achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.  

The Accounting Officer considers how the Trust’s use of its resources has provided good 

value for money during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trustees where 

value for money can be improved, including the use of benchmarking data where 

appropriate. The Accounting Officer for the Trust has delivered value for money during the 

year:  

  

• All five Academies have continued to make substantial gains and improvements.  

Student outcomes in national assessments have generally met or exceeded national 

averages and where this isn’t the case a full analysis of reasons for this have been 

explored.  

• Judicious use of SCA and DFC alongside revenue budgets have seen a continued 

investment in meeting both Health & Safety requirements as well as supporting the 

development of the curriculum.  This has included ensuring no days of education 

have been lost at Woodkirk Academy due to the presence of RAAC. 

• Despite the challenges of rising costs, the Trust has been able to effectively reduce 

some expenditure whilst maintaining standards. 

• Leodis Support Service continues to meet the needs of all our pupils and families 

through joined up pastoral support, focussed commissioning of services such as 

counselling, and close partnerships with social services and the police.   

• Continued focus on procurement procedures have led to significant savings and 

efficiencies. As an example, the Trust has procured a new MIS system to improve 

efficiency across the Trust and consolidate several processes which currently require 

separate products.  

• Continued centralisation of the support functions across the Trust developing robust 

Trust wide procedures, policies and sharing expertise/best practice. 

• Implementation of the extended final phase of the IT development plan allowing for 

strategic use of permitted funding and reserves to enhance the quality of the 

curriculum and educational outcomes.  

  

The Purpose of the System of Internal Control  

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to 

eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only 

provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal 

control is based on an on-going process designed to: 

  

• identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Trust policies, aims and 

objectives. 

• evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be 

realised. 

• manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.   

  

The system of internal control has been in place in Leodis Academies Trust for the year 

ended 31 August 2024 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial 

statements.   
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Governance Statement (continued) 

Capacity to Handle Risk  

The Board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the Trust is exposed together 

with the operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate 

those risks. The Board of Trustees is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for 

identifying, evaluating and managing the Trust's significant risks that has been in place for 

the year ended to 31 August 2024 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and 

financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of Trustees.  

 

The Risk and Control Framework   

The Trust’s system of internal control is based on a framework of regular management 

information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system 

of delegation and accountability. In particular it includes:  

  

• comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and 

periodic financial reports which are reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees. 

• regular reviews by Finance and Risk Committees of reports which indicate financial 

performance against the forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and 

expenditure programmes. 

• setting targets to measure financial and other performance. 

• clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines. 

• identification and management of risks. 

  

The Board of Trustees has adopted a holistic approach to Internal Scrutiny to support its risk 

and control framework.   

  

At the start of the year, the FRC reviewed aspects of the risk register to agree the internal 

scrutiny programme for the year, and who would undertake this scrutiny work in order to 

provide assurances to the Trust Board. The FRC identified key areas where external 

assurances would be sought.      

 

Financial and Operational  

The Board of Trustees has decided to buy-in an internal audit service from TIAA. This option 

has been chosen because it gives the Trust Board the most independent review of systems 

and processes.  

 

The internal auditor’s role includes giving advice on financial and other matters and  

performing a range of checks on the academy trust’s financial and other systems. In 

particular, the checks carried out in the current period included:  

 

• Review of Financial Controls. 

• Follow up on previous years’ Internal Audit Findings. 

 

When an audit report has been completed, the auditor reports to the Trust Board through 

FRC on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the board of 

trustees’ financial responsibilities. On an annual basis the auditor prepares a summary  
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Governance Statement (continued) 

Financial and Operational (continued) 

report to the Committee outlining the areas reviewed, key findings, recommendations and 

conclusions to help the committee consider actions and assess year on year progress. 

 

Education  

In terms of educational risks, Trustees agreed to continue with scrutiny work through an 

external provider. Trustees agreed that this work should be monitored by the CEO Principal 

and reported to Trustees through the Standards Committee. Three Academies received 

Ofsted visits during the year, and action plans relating to these outcomes have been put in 

place and are monitored by the LGB/LAB as part of the school development plan and 

reported to Trustees via the Standards Committee.  

  

Safeguarding  

The Trust follows the Safeguarding policies and procedure adopted by Leeds City Council. 

Each Academy completes an ARMS return for the Local Authority (LA) to evidence best 

practice. LA Audits are undertaken every three years.  

  

Compliance  

The Trustees endeavour to ensure that compliance with statutory and non-statutory 

guidance is in place across the Trust. 

 

Compliance is led centrally and regularly undertaken at Academy level and tracked using 

compliance and reporting system. Termly Health & Safety meetings take place at each 

Academy, allowing for the tracking and reporting of any action plans.  The Trust continues 

work with the Local Authority H&S team to ensure compliance.  The Trust Health & Safety 

Policy was updated during the year, and training delivered to key stakeholders. 

 

A regular review of Trust Policies takes place to ensure that they are fit for purpose and in 

line with the most up to date guidance.  

 

 

Review of Effectiveness  

As Accounting Officer, the CEO has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the 

system of internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:  

  

• the work of the internal auditors across a number of areas. 

• the work of the external auditor. 

• the financial management and governance self-assessment process and the school 

resource management self-assessment tool. 

• the work of the executive managers within the Trust who have responsibility for the 

development and maintenance of the internal control framework. 

• correspondence from ESFA. 

   

The Accounting Officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of 

the system of internal control by the Finance and Risk Committee and a plan to ensure 

continuous improvement of the system is in place.   
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements to the 

Members of Leodis Academies Trust 
 

Opinion 

We have audited the financial statements of Leodis Academies Trust for the year ended 31 

August 2024 which comprise the statement of financial activities, the balance sheet, the 

cash flow statements and the notes to the financial statements, including significant 

accounting policies.  The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their 

preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial 

Reporting Standard 102, the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and 

Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). 

In our opinion the financial statements: 

 

• give a true and fair view of the charitable company’s state of affairs as at 31 August 

2024 and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income 

and expenditure, for the year then ended;  

• have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted 

Accounting Practice; and 

• have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006, the Charities 

SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2024 issued by the Education 

and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA). 

 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs 

(UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in 

the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We 

are independent of the charitable company in accordance with the ethical requirements that 

are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical 

Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 

requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  

 

Conclusions Relating to Going Concern 

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the trustees’ use of the going 

concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. 

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties 

relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on 

the charitable company's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve 

months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.  

 

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the trustees with respect to going concern are 

described in the relevant sections of this report. 

 

Other Information 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to 

the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance 

conclusion thereon. The trustees are responsible for the other information. The other 

information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the 
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements to the 

Members of Leodis Academies Trust (continued) 
 

Other Information (continued) 

financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 

 

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the 

other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 

obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we 

identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to 

determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements 

themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 

misstatement of this other information we are required to report that fact. 

 

We have nothing to report in this regard. 

 

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: 

 

• the information given in the Trustees’ Annual Report which includes the Directors’ 

Report and the Strategic Report for the financial year for which the financial 

statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and  

• the Trustees’ Annual Report which includes the Directors’ Report and the Strategic 

Report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements. 

 

Matters on which we are Required to Report by Exception 

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the charitable company and its 

environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material 

misstatements in the Trustees’ Annual Report and Strategic Report. 

 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 

requires us to report to you if, in our opinion: 

 

• adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit 

have not been received from branches not visited by us; or 

• the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and 

returns; or 

• certain disclosures of trustees’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or 

• we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit. 

 

Responsibilities of Trustees 

As explained more fully in the Trustees’ Responsibilities Statement set out on page 38, the 

trustees (who are also directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) 

are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that 

they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the trustees determine is  

necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements to the 

Members of Leodis Academies Trust (continued) 
 

Responsibilities of Trustees (continued) 

 

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the 

charitable company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 

matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the 

trustees either intend to liquidate the charitable company or to cease operations, or have no 

realistic alternative to do so.  

 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

We have been appointed as auditors under the Companies Act 2006 and report in 

accordance with regulations made under that Act. 

 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 

as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 

an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 

assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will 

always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 

error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 

be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 

financial statements. 

 

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We 

design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material 

misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The specific procedures for this 

engagement and the extent to which these are capable of detecting irregularities, including 

fraud are detailed below. 

 

  

Identifying and assessing risks related to irregularities: 

We assessed the susceptibility of the charitable company’s financial statements to material 

misstatement and how fraud might occur, including through discussions with the trustees, 

discussions within our audit team planning meeting, updating our record of internal controls 

and ensuring these controls operated as intended. We evaluated possible incentives and 

opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements.  We identified laws and 

regulations that are of significance in the context of the charitable company by discussions 

with trustees and updating our understanding of the sector in which the charitable company 

operates.  

Laws and regulations of direct significance in the context of the charitable company include 

The Companies Act 2006, guidance issued by the Charity Commission for England and 

Wales and guidance issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency. 
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements to the 

Members of Leodis Academies Trust (continued) 
 

Audit response to risks identified: 

We considered the extent of compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our audit 

procedures on the related financial statement items including a review of financial statement 

disclosures. We reviewed the charitable company’s records of breaches of laws and 

regulations, minutes of meetings and correspondence with relevant authorities, including the 

Education and Skills Funding Agency and the Department for Education to identify potential 

material misstatements arising. We discussed the charitable company’s policies and 

procedures for compliance with laws and regulations with members of management 

responsible for compliance. 

 

During the planning meeting with the audit team, the engagement partner drew attention to 

the key areas which might involve non-compliance with laws and regulations or fraud. We 

enquired of management whether they were aware of any instances of non-compliance with 

laws and regulations or knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud. We addressed 

the risk of fraud through management override of controls by testing the appropriateness of 

journal entries and identifying any significant transactions that were unusual or outside the 

normal course of business. We assessed whether judgements made in making accounting 

estimates gave rise to a possible indication of management bias. At the completion stage of 

the audit, the engagement partner’s review included ensuring that the team had approached 

their work with appropriate professional scepticism and thus the capacity to identify non-

compliance with laws and regulations and fraud.  

 

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and the further 

removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the events and transactions 

reflected in the financial statements, the less likely we would become aware of it. Also, the 

risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not 

detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for 

example, forgery or intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion. 

 

A further description of our responsibilities is available on the Financial Reporting Council’s 

website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our 

auditor’s report. 
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Statements to the 

Members of Leodis Academies Trust (continued) 
 

Use of our Report  

This report is made solely to the charitable company’s members, as a body, in accordance 

with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006.  Our audit work has been undertaken 

so that we might state to the charitable company’s members those matters we are required 

to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose.  To the fullest extent 

permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the 

charitable company and the charitable company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for 

this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Jonathan Davis (Senior Statutory Auditor) 

for and on behalf of Saffery LLP 

 

Statutory Auditors  

Chartered Accountants 

10 Wellington Place 

Leeds 

LS1 4AP  

 

  

Date:  

 

Saffery LLP is eligible to act as an auditor in terms of section 1212 of the Companies Act 

2006 

  

  

17 December 2024
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Independent Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Report on 
Regularity to Leodis Academies Trust and the Education Funding 
Agency  

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 8 August 2024 and further to 

the requirements of the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the 

Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024, we have carried out an engagement to obtain 

limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by Leodis 

Academies Trust during the period 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 have been applied 

to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the 

authorities which govern them. 

 

This report is made solely to Leodis Academies Trust and ESFA in accordance with the 

terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to 

Leodis Academies Trust and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for 

no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume 

responsibility to anyone other than Leodis Academies Trust and ESFA, for our work, for this 

report, or for the conclusion we have formed. 

 

Respective Responsibilities of Leodis Academies Trust’s Accounting Officer 

and the Reporting Accountant 

The Accounting Officer is responsible, under the requirements of Leodis Academies Trust’s 

funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 1 September 2011 and 

the Academy Trust Handbook, extant from 1 September 2023, for ensuring that expenditure 

disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the 

financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them. 

 

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our 

profession’s ethical guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance 

with our engagement letter and the requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2023 

to 2024. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our 

work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income 

received during the period 1 September 2023 to 31 August 2024 have not been applied to 

purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the 

authorities which govern them. 

 

Approach 

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External 

Auditors and Reporting Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by the ESFA. We performed a 

limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter. 

 

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain 

information and explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to 

express a negative conclusion on regularity.  

 

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance 

engagement and consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would 

become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable assurance 

engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion. 
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Independent Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Report on 
Regularity to Leodis Academies Trust and the Education Funding 
Agency (continued) 

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity 

and propriety of the Trust’s income and expenditure. 

 

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusions includes: 

 

• Risk based sample testing on income and expenditure 

• Review of the systems and internal controls in place 

• Making appropriate enquiries of the Accounting Officer  

 

Conclusion 

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all 

material respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 1 

September 2023 to 31 August 2024 has not been applied to purposes intended by 

Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern 

them. 

 

 

 

 

 

Jonathan Davis 

Reporting Accountant 

 

For and on behalf of 

Saffery LLP 

Chartered Accountants 

Statutory Auditors 

 

10 Wellington Place 

Leeds 

LS1 4AP  

 

  

  

17 December 2024
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Statement of Financial Activities for the year ended 31 August 2024 
(Including Income and Expenditure Account) 

Note 
Unrestricted 

Funds 

Restricted 
General 

Funds 

Restricted 
Fixed 
Asset 

Funds 

Restricted 
Pension 

Funds 

Total 
2023/24 

Total 
2022/23 

Income and endowments from:       

Donations and capital grants 2 - 70 2,486 - 2,556 876 

Other trading activities 4 347 - - - 347 322 

Investments 5 116 - - - 116 17 

        

Charitable activities:        

Funding for the academy 
trust’s educational operations 

3 961 22,136 - - 23,097 21,927 

        

Total  1,424 22,206 2,486 - 26,116 23,142 

        

Expenditure on:        

Raising funds 6 6 - - - 6 13 

Charitable activities:        

Academy trust educational 
operations 

6 1,045 22,228 2,671 - 25,945 24,071 

Total  1,051 22,228 2,671 - 25,951 24,084 

        

Net income / (expenditure)  373 (22) (185) - 166 (942) 

        

Transfers between funds 16 41 (342) 241 (60) - - 

        

Other recognised gains:        

Actuarial gains on defined 
benefit pension schemes 

16 - - - 60 60 808 

Net movement in funds  414 (364) 56 - 106 (134) 

        

Reconciliation of funds        

Total funds brought forward  2,095 380 17,616 - 20,091 20,225 

Net movement in funds  414 (364) 56 - 106 (134) 

Total funds carried forward  2,509 16 17,672 - 20,197 20,091 

 
 

All results relate to continuing operations.  

There are no recognised gains and losses other than those passing through the statement of financial 

activities. 

The notes on pages 49 to 73 form part of these financial statements.  
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Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 August 2024 

 

  2024  2023 
 Notes £000  £000 
Cash flows from operating activities     
     
Net cash provided by operating activities 20 (2,440)  895 
     
Cash flows from investing activities 21 1,572  (215) 

     
Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting period  (868)  680 
     
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 22 5,011  4,331 
     

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 22 4,143  5,011 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 

2024 

1. Statement of Accounting Policies  

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied 

consistently, except where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is 

set out below. 

 

Basis of Preparation 

The financial statements of the Academy Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 

102, have been prepared under the historical cost convention in accordance with the 

Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the 

Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to 

charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard 

applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the 

Academies Accounts Direction 2023 to 2024 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the 

Companies Act 2006.  

 

Leodis Academies Trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102. 

 

Going Concern 

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are 

any material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on 

the ability of the company to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this 

assessment in respect of a period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for 

issue of the financial statements and have concluded that the Academy Trust has adequate 

resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are no 

material uncertainties about the Academy Trust’s ability to continue as a going concern, thus 

they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial 

statements.  

 

Income 

All incoming resources are recognised when the Academy Trust has entitlement to the funds, 

the receipt is probable and the amount can be measured reliably. 

 

• Grants 

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. 

The balance of income received for specific purposes but not expended during the 

period is shown in the relevant funds on the balance sheet. Where income is 

received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is not 

unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in 

creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where 

entitlement occurs before income is received, the income is accrued. 

 

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in 

the year for which it is receivable and any abatement in respect of the period is 

deducted from income and recognised as a liability. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 August 

2024 (continued) 

1. Statement of Accounting Policies (continued) 

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the 

grant. Unspent amounts of capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the 

restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are recognised when there is entitlement 

and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are expended. 

 

• Donations  

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-

related conditions) where the receipt is probable, and the amount can be reliably 

measured.  

 

• Other Income  

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is 

receivable and to the extent the Trust has provided the goods or services.  

 

• Donated Goods, Facilities and Services 

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds 

from sale less the expected costs of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at 

receipt, it is recognised in stock and ‘Income from other trading activities’. Upon sale, 

the value of the stock is charged against ‘Income from other trading activities’ and the 

proceeds are recognised as ‘Income from other trading activities’. Where it is 

impractical to fair value the items due to the volume of low value items they are not 

recognised in the financial statements until they are sold.  This income is recognised 

within ‘Income from other trading activities’. 

 

• Transfer on Conversion  

Where assets and liabilities are received by the Trust on conversion to an academy, 

the transferred assets are measured at fair value and recognised in the balance 

sheet at the point when the risks and rewards of ownership pass to the Trust. An 

equal amount of income is recognised as a transfer on conversion within Donations 

and capital grant income to the net assets received. 

 

• Donated Fixed Assets (Excluding Transfers on Conversion / into the Trust) 

Where the donated good is a fixed asset, it is measured at fair value, unless it is 

impractical to measure this reliably, in which case the cost of the item to the donor 

should be used. The gain is recognised as income from donations and a 

corresponding amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and 

depreciated over the useful economic life in accordance with the Academy Trust’s 

accounting policies. 

 

Expenditure 

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer 

economic benefit to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be 

required in settlement and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. 

Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of 

direct costs and shared costs, including support costs involved in undertaking each activity.  
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Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs 

which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are not attributable to a 

single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with the use of 

resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation 

charges allocated on the portion of the asset’s use.  

 

• Expenditure on Raising Funds 

This includes all expenditure incurred by the Academy Trust to raise funds for its 

charitable purposes and includes costs of all fundraising activities events and non-

charitable trading. 

 

• Charitable Activities 

These are costs incurred on the Academy Trust’s educational operations, including 

support costs and costs relating to the governance of the Academy Trust apportioned 

to charitable activities. 

  

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT. 

 

Tangible Fixed Assets 

Assets costing £1,000 or more individually or as a group are capitalised as tangible fixed 

assets and are carried at cost, net of depreciation and any provision for impairment. 

 

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from 

the government or from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost 

and depreciated over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific 

conditions attached to the funding requiring the continued use of the asset, the related 

grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and 

carried forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on the relevant assets is charged directly 

to the restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities. Where tangible fixed 

assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged 

to the unrestricted fund. 

 

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets at rates calculated to write off the cost of 

each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows: 

 

• Long leasehold buildings are assumed to have a life of 50 years from the date of 

construction. Depreciation is charged based upon the depreciated replacement cost 

basis at the date of acquisition (1 September 2011) by the academy for Woodkirk 

Academy. Depreciation is charged based on the ESFA valuation at the date of 

conversion (1 March 2016) for Westerton Primary Academy, and on a Professional 

Valuation at the date of conversion (1 September 2018) for Blackgates Primary 

Academy. 

• Leasehold land over the term of the 125-year lease.  

• Buildings improvements 10%, or over the terms of guarantee (maximum 50 years). 

• Fixtures, fittings and equipment 20%. 
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• ICT equipment 20%. 

• Motor Vehicles 20%. 

 

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not 

charged until they are brought into use and reclassified to freehold or leasehold land and 

buildings. 

 

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances 

indicate that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable.  Shortfalls 

between the carrying value of fixed assets and their recoverable amounts are recognised as 

impairments.  Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities. 

 

Liabilities 

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of 

a past event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, 

and the amount of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the 

amount that the Academy Trust anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has 

received as advanced payments for the goods or services it must provide. 

 

Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Academy Trust has an obligation at the reporting date 

as a result of a past event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits 

and the obligation can be estimated reliably.  

 

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the 

obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is based on 

the present value of those amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the 

risks specific to the liability.  The unwinding of the discount is recognised within interest 

payable and similar charges. 

 

Leased Assets 

Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 

 

Investments 

The wholly owned subsidiary Leodis Academy Services Ltd is dormant and is included in the 

balance sheet at value £nil.  

 

Financial Instruments 

The Academy Trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The 

financial assets and financial liabilities of the Academy Trust and their measurement basis 

are as follows: 
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• Financial Assets 

Trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments 

measured at amortised cost as detailed in note 13. Prepayments are not financial 

instruments. Amounts due to the charity’s wholly owned subsidiary are held at face 

value less any impairment. 

 

Cash at bank is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face 

value. 

 

• Financial Liabilities 

Trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are 

measured at amortised cost as detailed in notes 13 and 14. Taxation and social 

security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred 

income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already 

taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another 

financial instrument.  

 

Taxation 

The Academy Trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the 

Finance Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK 

corporation tax purposes.  

 

Accordingly, the Academy Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or 

capital gains received within categories covered by part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax 

Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that 

such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes. 

  

Pensions Benefits 

Retirement benefits to employees of the Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers’ 

Pension Scheme (‘TPS’) and the Local Government Pension Scheme (‘LGPS’). These are 

defined benefit schemes. 

 

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of 

pensions over employees’ working lives with the Academy Trust in such a way that the 

pension cost is a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. 

The contributions are determined by the Government Actuary based on quadrennial 

valuations using a prospective unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer 

scheme with no underlying assets to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS is 

treated as a defined contribution scheme for accounting purposes and the contributions 

recognised in the period to which they relate. 

 

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those 

of the Academy Trust in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are 

measured at fair value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected 

unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high- 
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quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial 

valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The 

amounts charged to net income/(expenditure) are the current service costs and the costs of 

scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and curtailments.  They are included as 

part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also 

recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities and comprises the interest cost on the 

defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by 

multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate 

used to discount the benefit obligations.  The difference between the interest income on the 

scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised in other 

recognised gains and losses. 

 

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses. 

 

Fund Accounting 

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting 

any of the charitable objects of the Academy Trust at the discretion of the Trustees. 

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital 

purposes imposed by funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific 

purpose. 

 

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions 

imposed by the funder/donor and include grants from the Education and Skills Funding 

Agency and Department for Education. 

 

Agency Arrangements 

The Academy Trust acts as an agent in distributing 16-19 Bursary Funds from the ESFA. 

Payments received from ESFA and subsequent disbursements to students are excluded 

from the statement of financial activities as the trust does not have control over the 

charitable application of the funds. The trust can use up to 5% of the allocation towards its 

own administration costs and this is recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities. The 

funds received and paid and any balances held are disclosed in note 27. 

  

Critical Accounting Estimates and Areas of Judgement 

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience 

and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable 

under the circumstances. 

 

Critical Accounting Estimates and Assumptions 

The Academy Trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting 

accounting estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual 

results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material 

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are 

discussed below. 
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The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability 

depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of 

assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) for pensions 

include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 25, 

will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore, a roll forward approach 

which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2022 has 

been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2024. Any differences 

between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation 

would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability. The Trust has adopted the 

policy of not recognising pension scheme assets where there is no realisable economic 

benefit. 

 

2. Donations and Capital Grants 

 

 

Unrestricted 
Funds 

Restricted 
General 

Funds 

Restricted 
Fixed Asset 

Funds 
Total 

2023/24 

 
Total 

2022/23 

 £000 £000 £000 £000  £000 

       

Capital grants - - 2,486 2,486  824 

Donated fixed assets - - - -  - 

Other donations - 70 - 70  52 

Total - 70 2,486 2,556  876 

 

 

3. Funding for the Academy Trust’s Educational Operations 

 

 
Unrestricted 

Funds 
Restricted 

Funds 
Total 

2023/24 
 Total 

2022/23 

 £000 £000 £000  £000 

      

General Annual Grant (GAG) - 18,132 18,132  17,422 

Other DfE / ESFA grants - 1,495 1,495  1,204 

UIFSM - 229 229  230 

Pupil Premium - 793 793  798 

 - 20,649 20,649  19,654 

      

Other Government Grants      

Local authority grants - 1,439 1,439  1,297 

Other government grants - 45 45  - 

 - 1,484 1,484  1,297 

      

Other income from the academy trust’s 
educational operations 

961 3 964  976 

 961 3 964  976 

      

Total 2023/24 961 22,136 23,097  21,927 
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4. Other Trading Activities 

 
Unrestricted 

Funds 
Restricted 

Funds 
Total 

2023/24 
 Total 

2022/23 

 £000 £000 £000  £000 

      

Hire of facilities 105 - 105  106 

Income from other charitable activities 240 - 240  206 

Income from ancillary trading activities 2 - 2  10 

 347 - 347  322 

   

5. Investment Income 

 
Unrestricted 

Funds 
Restricted 

Funds 
Total 

2023/24 
 Total 

2022/23 

 £000 £000 £000  £000 

      

Bank Interest receivable 116 - 116  17 

 116 - 116  17 

 

6. Expenditure  

 
 Non-Pay Expenditure   

 

Staff 
Costs Premises Other 

Total 
2023/24 

 Total 
2022/23 

 £000 £000 £000 £000  £000 

       

Expenditure on raising funds:        

Direct costs - - 6 6  13 

Academy's educational operations:       

Direct costs 13,464 729 1,849 16,042  17,264 

Allocated support costs 4,574 3,593 1,736 9,903  6,807 

Total 18,038 4,322 3,591 25,951  24,084 

 

 

Of the 2023 total expenditure of £26,102,000, £25,051,000 related to restricted funds and 

£1,051,000 related to unrestricted funds. 

 

Net expenditure for the period includes:    

 
  

Total 
2023/24 

 Total 
2022/23 

   £000  £000 
      

Operating lease rentals   71  31 

Depreciation   1,302  1,288 

(Gain)/loss on disposal of fixed assets   -  5 

Provision for RAAC impairment   -  858 

Auditor's remuneration - audit   25  21 

Auditor's remuneration - other services   7  16 

 
£5k is included above for the loss on disposal of IT assets in 22/23.   
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7. Charitable Activities 
 

 
  

Total 
2023/24 

 Total 
2022/23 

   £000  £000 

      

Direct costs – educational operations   16,042  17,264 

Direct costs – financing   6  13 

Support costs – educational operations   9,903  6,807 

   25,951  24,084 

   

Analysis of direct costs:     

 

 
Educational 
Operations 

Total 
2023/24 

 Total 
2022/23 

 £000 £000  £000 

     

Direct staff costs  13,348 13,348  13,830 

Direct depreciation 929 929  1,868 

Direct technology costs 170 170  102 

Examination fees 221 221  205 

School trips and visits 364 364  383 

Other direct costs 268 268  173 

Direct learning resources 742 742  702 

Total direct costs 16,042 16,042  17,264 

 

 

Analysis of support costs:     

 

 
Educational 
Operations 

Total 
2023/24 

 Total 
2022/23 

 £000 £000  £000 

     

Support staff costs  4,514 4,513  3,382 

Support depreciation 372 372  280 

Support technology costs 258 258  222 

Support Premises costs 2,027 2,027  1,723 

Legal costs – other 2 2  38 

Other support costs 1,037 1,037  1,125 

Governance costs 1,693 1,693  38 

Total support costs 9,903 9,902  6,808 

Total costs 25,945 25,944  24,072 
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8. Staff 
 

a. Staff Costs 

Staff costs during the period were:  
  

Total 
2023/24 

 Total 
2022/23 

   £000  £000 

      

Wages and salaries   13,163  12,583 

Social security costs   1,343  1,258 

Pension costs   2,849  2,609 

   17,355  16,450 

      

Agency staff costs   643  612 

Staff restructuring costs   40  39 

   18,038  17,101 

      

Staff restructuring costs comprise:      

Redundancy payments   -  - 

Severance payments   40  39 

   40  39 

    

b. Non Statutory / Non-Contractual Staff Severance Payments 

Included in staff restructuring costs are non-statutory/non-contractual severance payments 

totalling £18,085 (2022: £9,406). Individually, the payments were £3,194.16, £3,890.92 and 

£11,000. 

 

The academy trust paid four severance payments in the year, disclosed in the following 

bands: 
      

   No.   

      

£0 - £25,000   3   

£25,001 - £50,000   -   

£50,001 - £100,000   -   

£100,001 - £150,000   -   

£150,001    -   

 

c. Staff Numbers 

The average number of persons employed by the Trust during the year was as follows: 

   2023/24  2022/23 

   No.  No. 

      

Teachers   184  200 

Administration and support   260  261 

Management   8  8 

   452  469 
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d. Higher Paid Staff 

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) 

exceeded £60,000 was: 
   2023/24  2022/23 

   No.  No. 

      

£60,001 - £70,000   14  9 

£70,001 - £80,000   4  7 

£80,001 - £90,000   3  1 

£90,001 - £100,000   1  - 

£100,001 - £110,000   -  1 

£110,001 - £120,000   1  - 

£120,001 - £130,000   -  - 

£130,001 - £140,000   -  1 

£140,001 - £150,000   -  - 

£150,001 - £160,000   1  - 

 

e. Key Management Personnel 

The key management personnel of the Trust comprise the Trustees and the Leadership 

Team as listed on page 3. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer 

pension contributions and employer National Insurance contributions) received by key 

management personnel for their services to the Trust was £1,006,000 (2023: £913,000). 

 

9. Central Services 

The Trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year: 

 

• Human resources. 

• Financial services. 

• Premises and IT services. 

• Legal, GDPR and compliance services. 

• Leadership support. 

• Education support services.  

• Cluster and wellbeing support services. 

 

The Trust charged for these services based on 7.6% of GAG and Early Years funding. The 

actual amounts charged during the year were as follows: 

 
   2023/24  2022/23 

   £000  £000 

      

Blackgates Primary Academy   109  92 

East Ardsley Primary Academy   154  124 

Hill Top Primary Academy   80  71 

Westerton Primary Academy   234  182 

Woodkirk Academy   852  654 

   1,429  1,123 
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10. Related Party Transactions: Trustees’ Remuneration and Expenses 

No Trustee has been paid remuneration or have received other benefits from an employment 

with the Trust during the year.  

 

During the period ended 31 August 2024, travel and subsistence expenses of £193.50 were 

reimbursed directly to one Trustee (2023: £116.10). 

 

 

11. Trustees and Officers’ Insurance 

In accordance with normal commercial practice, the Trust has purchased insurance to 

protect Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions 

occurring whilst on academy business. The insurance provides cover up to £10,000,000 on 

any one claim and the cost for the period ended 31 August 2024 is included in the total 

insurance cost. 

 

 

12. Tangible Fixed Assets  
 

2023/24  

 

Leasehold 
Land and 
Buildings 

Furniture 
and 

Equipment 
Plant and 

Machinery 
Computer 

Equipment 

Motor 
Vehicles Total 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Cost       

At 1 September 2023 24,060 949 766 1,468 8 27,251 

Additions 440 91 97 402 - 1,030 

At 31 August 2024 24,500 1,040 863 1,870 8 27,281 

      

  

 

Leasehold 
Land and 
Buildings 

Furniture 
and 

Equipment 
Plant and 

Machinery 
Computer 

Equipment 

Motor 
Vehicles Total 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Depreciation       

At 1 September 2023 8,762 599 78 959 8 10,406 

Charged in-year 926 46 149 181 - 1,302 

At 31 August 2024 9,688 645 227 1,140 8 11,708 

 

 

 

Leasehold 
Land and 
Buildings 

Furniture 
and 

Equipment 
Plant and 

Machinery 
Computer 

Equipment 

Motor 
Vehicles Total 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Net Book Value       

At 1 September 2023 15,298 350 688 509 - 16,845 

At 31 August 2024 14,812 395 636 730 - 16,573 
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12. Tangible Fixed Assets (continued) 
 

2022/23  

 

Leasehold 
Land and 
Buildings 

Furniture 
and 

Equipment 
Plant and 

Machinery 
Computer 

Equipment 

Motor 
Vehicles Total 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Cost       

At 1 September 2022 23,828 934 - 1,427 8 26,197 

Additions 232 15 766 46 - 1,059 

Disposals - - - (5) - (5) 

At 31 August 2023 24,060 949 766 1,468 8 27,251 

      

  

 

Leasehold 
Land and 
Buildings 

Furniture 
and 

Equipment 
Plant and 

Machinery 
Computer 

Equipment 

Motor 
Vehicles Total 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Depreciation       

At 1 September 2022 6,909 556 - 787 8 8,260 

Charged in-year 995 43 78 172 - 1,288 

Provision for impairment 858 - - - - 858 

Disposals - - - - - - 

At 31 August 2023 8,762 599 78 959 8 10,406 

 

 

 

Leasehold 
Land and 
Buildings 

Furniture 
and 

Equipment 
Plant and 

Machinery 
Computer 

Equipment 

Motor 
Vehicles Total 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Net Book Value       

At 1 September 2022 16,918 378 - 640 - 17,936 

At 31 August 2023 15,298 350 688 509 - 16,845 

 

A provision of £857,951 was included in 2022/23 accounts against the potential impairment 

of a block at Woodkirk due to RAAC. As the academy is included in the School Rebuilding 

Programme to address the RAAC condition issue, there is no reason to suggest the 

impairment should be removed however it is not confirmed that the block will be demolished. 

 

A decision on whether the block is repaired or rebuilt will be made by the DfE in the next 

year which will clarify the situation. 
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13. Debtors 

   2023/24  2022/23 

   £000  £000 

      

Trade debtors   7  5 

VAT recoverable   489  144 

Other debtors   6  14 

Prepayments and accrued income   872  297 

   1,374  460 

 

14. Creditors: Amounts Falling Due Within One Year 
 

   2023/24  2022/23 

   £000  £000 

      

Trade creditors   467  538 

Other taxation and social security   295  286 

VAT payable   -  1 

Loans   40  42 

Other creditors   346  297 

Accruals and deferred income   726  1,002 

   1,874  2,166 

 
   2023/24  2022/23 

   £000  £000 

      

Deferred income at 1 September 2023   50  20 

Released from previous years   (50)  (20) 

Resources deferred in the year   96  50 

Deferred Income at 31 August 2024   96  50 

 

At the balance sheet date the Trust was holding funds received in advance for the 16-19 

Bursary and School Led Tutoring funding to be returned to the DfE. 

 

 

15. Creditors: Amounts Falling Due in Greater Than One Year 
  

   2023/24  2022/23 

   £000  £000 

      

Loans   19  59 

   19  59 

 

Loans comprise three interest-free loans originally of £16,061, £24,553 and £256,000 from 

Salix which are provided on the following terms: repayable over 8, 8 and 7 years in equal 

instalments.  
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16. Funds 
  

 

 

Balance  
at 1 

September 
2023 Income Expenditure 

Gains, 
Losses 

and 
Transfers 

Balance 
at 31 

August 
2024 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

      

Restricted General Funds      

General Annual Grant (GAG) 310 18,132 (18,084) (342) 16 

UIFSM - 229 (229) - - 

Pupil premium - 793 (793) - - 

Catch up premium 70 - (70) - - 

Other DfE/ESFA grants - 1,439 (1,439) - - 

Local authority grants - 1,543 (1,543) - - 

Other grants - 70 (70) - - 

Pension reserve - - (60) 60 - 

 380 22,206 (22,288) (282) 16 

 

Restricted Fixed Asset Funds      

Transfer on conversion 12,130 - (600) - 11,530 

DfE Group capital grants 3,711 2,486 (1,687) - 4,510 

DfE Donated assets 88 - (29) - 59 

Capital expenditure from GAG 382 - (205) - 177 

Transfer from general funds 1,091 - (133) 241 1,199 

Other capital grants 214 - (17) - 197 

 17,616 2,486 (2,671) 241 17,672 

      

Total Restricted Funds 17,996 24,692 (24,959) (41) 17,588 

 

General funds 1,867 1,424 (1,051) (236) 2,004 

Designated IT projects 48 - - 100 148 

Designated building fund 180 - - 41 211 

Leodis Pledge - - - 136 136 

 2,095 1,424 (1,051) 41 2,509 

      

Total Funds 20,091 26,116 (26,010) - 20,197 
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16. Funds (continued) 
 

 

 

Balance  
at 1 

September 
2022 Income Expenditure 

Gains, 
Losses 

and 
Transfers 

Balance 
at 31 

August 
2023 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 

      

Restricted General Funds      

General Annual Grant (GAG) - 15,698 (15,307) (81) 310 

UIFSM - 230 (230) - - 

Pupil premium - 798 (798) - - 

Catch up premium - 140 (70) - 70 

Other DfE/ESFA grants - 2,787 (2,787) - - 

Local authority grants - 1,239 (1,239) - - 

Other income - 138 (138) - - 

Pension reserve (510) - (298) 808 - 

 (510) 21,030 (20,867) 727 380 

 

Restricted Fixed Asset Funds      

Transfer on conversion 13,644 - (1,514)  12,130 

DfE Group capital grants 3,149 824 (262) - 3,711 

DfE Donated assets 117 - (29) - 88 

Capital expenditure from GAG 508 - (126) - 382 

Transfer from general funds 1,193 - (183) 81 1,091 

Other capital grants 249 - (35) - 214 

 18,860 824 (2,149) 81 17,616 

      

Total Restricted Funds 18,350 21,854 (23,016) 808 17,996 

 

General funds 1,667 1,288 (1,068) (20) 1,867 

Designated IT projects 48 - - - 48 

Designated building fund 160 - - 20 180 

 1,875 1,288 (1,068) - 2,095 

      

Total Funds 20,225 23,142 (24,084) 808 20,091 

 

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows: 

 

Restricted General Funds relate to grants receivable from the ESFA and other sources that 

are used to fund the operating activities of the Trust. Under the funding agreement with the 

Secretary of State, the Trust was not subject to a limit on the amount of GAG that it could 

carry forward at 31 August 2024. 
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2024 (continued) 

16. Funds (continued) 

Restricted Fixed Asset Funds represents the value of tangible fixed assets acquired at 

conversion of each Academy plus capital grants received and capital expenditure funded 

from GAG income and unrestricted reserves since that date, less depreciation charges. 

 

Unrestricted General Funds have arisen from funds transferred at conversion plus 

surpluses created from the school fund, catering services and trading activities. These funds 

may be used towards meeting the charitable objectives of the Trust at the discretion of the 

Trustees. 

 

During the year:  

 

• £241,000 was transferred from restricted general funds and unrestricted funds to 

fund capital expenditure.  

• £100,000 was transferred from restricted general funds and unrestricted funds for 

future IT investment.  

• £21,000 was transferred from restricted general funds and unrestricted funds to be 

spent on activities the funds were received for. 

• £136k was transferred from unrestricted general funds for the Leodis Pledge. 

• The Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) is currently reported in a surplus 

position which is not felt to be recoverable. The fund has therefore been adjusted to 

de-recognise the asset on the balance sheet.   

 

A balance at the year-end of £200,000 has been designated towards the recarpeting of the 

3G pitch at Woodkirk Academy, and funds of £48,000 continue to be designated to cover 

revenue costs required for the implementation of the Academy Trust IT Strategy. The 

recarpeting of the 3G pitch should be carried out in the next few years; this is required every 

10 years however low use during the pandemic has meant that the life of the carpet has 

been extended. The IT balance is part of planned activities for the new financial year. 

 

The land and buildings at Hill Top Primary Academy and East Ardsley Primary Academy are 

occupied under lease arrangement. After considering the attributable risks and rewards of 

occupation of the building the Trustees believe that the Academies do not control the 

buildings and as such they are not recognised within the financial statements. The future 

lease commitments in relation to these buildings are shown within note 19.   
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16. Funds (continued) 

Total funds analysis by academy: 

 
Fund balances at 31 August 2024 were allocated as follows: 2023/24  2022/23 

   £000  £000 

      

Blackgates Primary Academy   84  69 

East Ardsley Primary Academy   292  271 

Hill Top Primary Academy   192  183 

Westerton Primary Academy   330  288 

Woodkirk Academy   968  951 

Central funds   245  485 

   2,111  2,247 

 

 

 

Restricted fixed asset fund   17,581  17,616 

Designated funds   505  228 

Pension reserve   -  - 

Total   20,197  20,091 

    

Total Cost Analysis by Academy 

Expenditure incurred by each Academy during the year was as follows: 

 

 

Teaching 
and 

Educational 
Support 

Staff Costs 

Other 
Support 

Staff 
Costs 

Educational 
Supplies 

Other Costs 
(Excluding 

Depreciation) 
Total 

2023/24 

 

Total 
2022/23 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000  £000 

Blackgates Primary 
Academy 

1,197 298 252 262 2,009  1,938 

East Ardsley Primary 
Academy 

1,581 202 330 629 2,742  2,566 

Hill Top Primary Academy 757 158 156 352 1,423  1,311 

Westerton Primary 
Academy 

2,495 523 432 397 3,847  3,719 

Woodkirk Academy 8,277 1379 1,986 1,294 12,936  12,177 

Central funds 254 976 144 1,740 3,054  2,373 

Trust Total 14,561 3,536 3,300 4,674 26,011  24,084 
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2024 (continued) 

17. Analysis of Net Assets Between Funds 
 

Fund balances at 31 August 2024 are represented by:  

  

 

 

Unrestricted 
Funds 

Restricted 
General  

Funds 

Restricted 
Fixed Asset 

Funds 
Total 

2023/24 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 

     

Tangible fixed assets - - 16,574 16,574 

Current assets 2,509 1,909 1,099 5,517 

Current liabilities - (1,874) - (1,874) 

Non-current liabilities - (19) - (19) 

Pension scheme liability - - - - 

Total 2,509 16 17,672 20,197 

 

 

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:  

 

 

 

Unrestricted 
Funds 

Restricted 
General  

Funds 

Restricted 
Fixed Asset 

Funds 
Total 

2022/23 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 

     

Tangible fixed assets - - 17,703 17,703 

Current assets 2,095 2,605 771 5,471 

Current liabilities - (2,166) (858) (3,024) 

Non-current liabilities - (59) - (59) 

Pension scheme liability - - - - 

Total 2,095 380 17,616 20,091 

  

       

18. Capital Commitments 
 2023/24  2022/23 

   £000  £000 

      

Contracted for, but not provided in the financial statements 65  307 
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19. Operating Leases   

At 31 August 2024 the total of the Academy Trust’s future minimum lease payments under 

non-cancellable operating leases was: 

 
 2023/24  2022/23 

   £000  £000 

      

Amounts due within one year 604  56 

Amounts due between one and five years 642  159 

Amounts due after five years 3  - 

 1,249  215 

 

Other Contractual Commitments 

At 31 August 2024 the total of the Trust’s future minimum lease payments under other 

contractual commitments was: 

  
 2023/24  2022/23 

   £000  £000 

      

Amounts due within one year 844  661 

Amounts due between one and five years 3,376  2,645 

Amounts due after five years 1,357  2,397 

 5,577  5,703 

 

The Trust receives funding from the ESFA in relation to service concession commitments for 

East Ardsley Primary Academy and Hill Top Primary Academy. 

 

20. Reconciliation of Net Income to Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities 
  

 2023/24  2022/23 

   £000  £000 

      

Net income / (expenditure) for the reporting period (as per the 
Statement of Financial Activities) 

106  (942) 

    

Adjusted for:    

Depreciation charges 1,302  1,288 

Capital grants from DfE and other capital income (2,486)  (824) 

Provision for RAAC impaired asset -  858 

Dividends, interest and rents from investments (116)  (17) 

Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable (41)  291 

Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost (19)  7 

Defined benefit pension scheme asset adjustment 60  - 

(Increase) / decrease in debtors (914)  (73) 

Increase in creditors (332)  307 

Net cash provided by operating activities (2,440)  895 
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2024 (continued) 

21. Cash Flows from Investing Activities 
  

 2023/24  2022/23 

   £000  £000 

      

Dividends, interest and rents from investments 116  17 

Acquisitions of tangible fixed assets (1,029)  (1,061) 

Disposal of tangible fixed assets -  5 

Capital grants from DfE/ESFA Group 2,486  824 

Capital funding received from sponsors and others -  - 

 1,573  (215) 

 

22. Analysis of Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 

 2023/24  2022/23 

   £000  £000 

      

Cash in hand and at bank 4,143  5,011 

 4,143  5,011 

    

 

23. Analysis of Changes in Net Debt 

 

  
At 1 

September 
2023 

 

Cash 
Flows 

 
At 31 

August 
2024 

   £000  £000  £000 

        

Cash at bank and in hand 5,011  (868)  4,143 

      

Loans falling due within one year (42)  -  (42) 

Loans falling due after more than one year (59)  42  (17) 

 4,910  (826)  4,084 

 

 

24. Members’ Liability 

Each Member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the 

company in the event of it being wound up while he/she is a Member, or within one year after 

he/she ceases to be a Member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the 

debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to be a Member. 

 

25. Pension and Similar Obligations 

The Academy Trust’s employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers’ 

Pension Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local 

Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by West 

Yorkshire Pension Fund. Both are multi-employer defined benefit schemes. 
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25. Pension and Similar Obligations (continued) 

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2020 and of 

the LGPS to the period ended 31 March 2022. 

 

Contributions amounting to £260,000 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2024 

(2023: £298,000) and are included within creditors. 

 

Teachers' Pension Scheme 

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, 

governed by the Teachers' Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for 

teachers in academies. All teachers have the option to opt out of the TPS following 

enrolment. 

 

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and employer makes 

contributions, as a percentage of salary - these contributions are credited to the Exchequer. 

Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by public funds provided by Parliament.    

 

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme  

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial 

review of the TPS in accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer 

Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by HM Treasury every 4 years. The aim of the review is 

to ensure scheme costs are recognised and managed appropriately and the review specifies 

the level of future contributions. 

 

Actuarial scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, 

design of benefits and many other factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was 

carried out as at 31 March 2020. The valuation report was published by the Department for 

Education on 27 October 2023, with the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, applying a notional 

investment return based on 1.7% above the rate of CPI. The key elements of the valuation 

outcome are: 

 

• Employer contribution rates set at 28.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% 

administration levy). This is an increase of 5% in employer contributions and the cost 

control result is such that no change in member benefits is needed. 

• Total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of 

future benefits) for service to the effective date of £262,000 million and notional 

assets (estimated future contributions together with the notional investments held at 

the valuation date) of £222,200 million, giving a notional past service deficit of 

£39,800 million. 

 

The result of this valuation will be implemented from 1 April 2024.The next valuation result is 

due to be implemented from 1 April 2028. 

 

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £2,187,000 (2023: 

£1,909,000). 
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25. Pension and Similar Obligations (continued) 

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions 

website. 

 

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension 

scheme. The academy trust is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and 

liabilities of the plan. Accordingly, the academy trust has taken advantage of the exemption 

in FRS 102 and has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined 

contribution scheme. The academy trust has set out above, the information available on the 

scheme. 

 

Local Government Pension Scheme 

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate 

trustee-administered funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31 August 2024 

was £983,000 (2023: £928,000), of which employer’s contributions totalled £733,000 (2023: 

£693,000) and employees’ contributions totalled £250,000 (2023: £235,000). The agreed 

contribution rates for future years are 17.6% over the next year for employers and between 

5.5% and 8.5% for employees. 

 

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee 

that, in the event of an Academy Trust closure, outstanding Local Government Pension 

Scheme liabilities would be met by the Department for Education. The guarantee came into 

force on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the Department for Education reaffirmed its 

commitment to the guarantee, with a parliamentary minute published on GOV.UK. 

 

Principal Actuarial Assumptions  

 
 2023/24  2022/23 

    

Rate of increase in salaries 3.75%  3.85% 

Rate of increase for pensions in payment / inflation 2.50%  2.60% 

Discount rate for scheme liabilities 4.90%  5.10% 

Inflation assumption (CPI) 2.50%  2.60% 

 

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in 

mortality rates. The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are: 

 
 2023/24  2022/23 

Retiring today:    

Male 20.8  21.0 

Female 21.7  24.1 

    

Retiring in 20 years:    

Male 24.0  22.2 

Female 24.7  25.1 
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25. Pension and Similar Obligations (continued) 

Sensitivity Analysis 2023/24 

 

2022/23 

 £000  £000 

    

Discount rate +0.1% (327)  (299) 

Discount rate -0.1% 343  299 

Mortality assumption – 1 year increase 408  374 

Mortality assumption – 1 year decrease (408)  (374) 

    
 
The academy trust’s share of the assets in the scheme were: 2023/24 

 
2022/23 

 £000  £000 

    

Equities 14,284  12,455 

Gilts 1,585  1,151 

Corporate bonds 720  700 

Property 486  513 

Cash and other liquid assets 486  606 

Other 450  124 

Total market value of assets 18,011  15,549 

    

The actual return on scheme assets was £1,972,000 (2023: £195,000).   

 

Amount Recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities  

  

 2023/24  2022/23 

 £000  £000 

    

Current service cost (622)  (984) 

Interest cost 19  (7) 

Total amount recognised in the SOFA (603)  (991) 

 

 

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows: 

  

 2023/24  2022/23 

 £000  £000 

    

At 1 September 14,941  15,292 

Current service cost 692  984 

Interest cost 756  625 

Employee contributions 250  241 

Actuarial (gain) - Financial 316  (3,692) 

Actuarial (gain) - demographic assumptions (158)  (283) 

Actuarial loss - experience 22  2,136 

Benefits paid (493)  (362) 

At 31 August 16,326  14,941 
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2024 (continued) 

Changes in the fair value of academy trust’s share of scheme assets: 

   

 2023/24  2022/23 

 £000  £000 

    

At 1 September 15,549  14,782 

Interest income 806  618 

Actuarial loss 1,166  (423) 

Employer contributions 733  693 

Employee contributions 250  241 

Benefits paid (493)  (362) 

At 31 August 18,011  15,549 

    

    

Charge to SOFA to de-recognise the pension asset from the balance 
sheet 

(1,685)  (608) 

Per Balance Sheet -  - 

  

   

   

26. Related Party Transactions 

No related party transactions took place in the period of account, other than certain Trustees’ 

remuneration and expenses already disclosed in note 10.  

 

 

27. Agency Arrangements 

The Trust distributes 16-19 Bursary Funds to students as an agent for the ESFA. In the 

accounting period ending 31 August 2024 the Trust received £38,308 (2023: £33,956) and 

disbursed £34,909 (2023: £26,585) from the fund. An amount of £10,516.55 (2023: 

£14,808.72) is included as deferred income, representing the undistributed funds which will 

be distributed to students in the accounting period ended 31 August 2025. 
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